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High school students in the Oregon Rowing Unlimited program power their new
Vespoli racing shell on Portland’s Willamette River during a grueling training
session. The Mentor Graphics Foundation donated the shell to this non-profit
organization that offers rowing to high school students of all socioeconomic
backgrounds. Competitive rowing teaches students teamwork, discipline, and 
hard work and has opened doors for many students to attend college.
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Economic cycles may rise and fall, but ideas never stop flowing. There’s 

no stopping them. Not only is it the nature of man to brim with creativity,

but it’s the nature of business. Without new ideas, companies stall, then

sink. It’s a hard business fact that even when times are bad, you have to

stay focused on innovation, or the whole business drifts off course.

Mentor has kept its innovation team in racing trim through its history.

While most EDA companies acquire good ideas solely through acquisition,

Mentor brews most of its ideas in its R&D labs. This past year has seen

several of these technologies become market-shaking products.

Innovation is the cornerstone of the entire electronics industry — and

certainly of Mentor Graphics. Innovation is the engine that powers us

forward, even in a down economy, and allows us to pull ahead of the

competition with strength and confidence.
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In the face of so much economic gloom,

it’s nice to find a market and a company

that grew last year. The electronic design

automation (EDA) market did grow,

because even in a downturn electronics

firms can’t afford to let up on design —

or, they’ll be buried by the competition

within six months.

At the head of the pack was Mentor. We

grew in nearly every dimension: revenues,

earnings, new product announcements,

and headcount. We hired aggressively to

take advantage of great management and

design talent that became available. We

added new customers at one and a half

times the rate of the rest of the industry.

And we introduced numerous new

products, some of which are destined to

redefine our industry.

Core Strategy the Same
Mentor’s basic strategy remains un-

changed: identify under-served markets,

build a beachhead with a number-one

product, push to obtain at least a 2X lead,

then expand the core offering with addi-

tional products and design flows. We

currently have significant leads in several

of our key markets, including systems

design, FPGA design, system-on-chip

design, and deep submicron physical

verification.

Innovation Engine Alive and Well
Another thing that’s unique about

Mentor’s strategy is its emphasis on

home-grown innovation. While just

about every other EDA company

acquires its way into new tech-

To Our Shareholders
– R&D Payback Time
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nologies and markets, Mentor develops

the vast majority of its new technologies

in its own labs (we do acquire key tech-

nologies when appropriate). Yes, it’s

expensive, and we’ve borne a heavy R&D

investment over the last decade. But it’s

the only way to come up with truly

ground-breaking, paradigm-shifting ideas

that move Mentor—and the whole

industry—forward.

A great example is our Embedded Deter-

ministic Test (EDT) technology introduced

this year. It provides multi-million-dollar

benefits to a whole new audience—test

equipment buyers—by compressing test

files. The idea for EDT came out of nearly

a decade of Design for Test research.

Mentor spends more on R&D than any of

its competitors; as a result, we introduced

more new products last year than all our

major competitors combined. Our R&D

spending will adjust downward to industry

levels as we begin to realize payback from

our investment.

We are seeing signs of an economic recov-

ery. Customers’ integrated circuit (IC)

inventories have been steadily decreasing

over the last few quarters and fab capacity

is slowly starting to fill up.

We believe that the upcoming recovery

will be different than past recoveries and

more profitable for the EDA industry. We

went into the last semiconductor recession

so quickly and sharply that all of the new

fab capacity that was built has been wait-

ing to come on-line. There were forty 300-

mm wafer fabs scheduled to come on-line

in the next three to four years. We expect

that there will be a continued renewing of

leading-edge capacity which is

good news for EDA, because

leading-edge capacity fuels

design activity, which demands

new and innovative tools.

The disintegration or break up

of the communications industry

is also fueling growth. As the

companies break up into smaller

companies, it increases the total market

opportunity. More companies require

more tools, and the increased competition

drives lots of design activity, requiring

leading-edge EDA tools to be successful.

In summary, our innovation engine is

powering the company ahead with great

new products that will serve as engines 

for growth through 2002 and beyond.

Walden C. Rhines

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Gregory K. Hinckley

President
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Home-grown innovation is 
the only way to come up with
ground-breaking, paradigm-
shifting ideas that move
Mentor — and the whole
industry — forward.



This year Mentor changed the game in the

Design-for-Test (DFT) industry by intro-

ducing a new patented technology called

Embedded Deterministic Test (EDT) that

extends the capacity of multi-million-

dollar automatic test equipment (ATE).

Mentor’s first incarnation of EDT is a

product called TestKompress. Launched in

the fourth quarter, the product was off to a

fast start, receiving its first order before

the end of the year.

TestKompress™ employs the new technol-

ogy to compress test data from chip to

tester — similar to zipping computer files

or compressing video in MPEG files —

to reduce ATE memory requirements by

up to ten times.

This is a major relief to makers of com-

plex microchips who are being eaten alive

by soaring test costs. With Moore’s Law

relentlessly driving the rate of semi-

conductor innovation, chip complexity is

growing at an incredible rate of 60 percent

a year. Plus, worldwide demand for these

chips is growing at a rate of 16 percent a

year. Increased device production volumes

and higher design complexity consume

more tester memory and more test time.

Ironically, the cost of semiconductor

manufacturing continues to drop year after

year, but the cost of test continues to rise,

threatening to outpace the cost of chip

manufacturing. As a result, semiconductor

companies are desperate for ways to

reduce capital spending on ATE and

shorten test time.

1/10th the Memory, 1/10th the Test Time

TestKompress compacts test data so that it

consumes far less memory in the expen-

sive tester. This 10X compression of test

data requires one-tenth the memory and

one-tenth the time to run. The impact:

semiconductor companies dramatically

reduce the cost of testing their devices,

TestKompress saves
millions in test costs

– Speeding the Expensive Test Phase
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TestKompress lets

semiconductor firms

compress chip test

data by a factor of ten,

dramatically reducing

the cost of test.



while at the same time increasing through-

put and possibly even extending the life of

existing ATE.

Even more exciting is the fact that Mentor

is on the ground floor of EDT. At intro-

duction, the technology is capable of 10X

compression. However, continued im-

provements to EDT over time can enable

it to conceivably reach compression up to

100X, extending the life of the average

ATE tester for 10 years. That’s dramati-

cally good news to manufacturing test

people in semiconductor firms, who are a

whole new customer base for Mentor. This

group has big money to spend on big

problems, and EDT opens up a huge

growth opportunity for Mentor.

A Ten-Year Gestation

An industry-jolting technology like EDT

doesn’t just happen overnight. Mentor’s

R&D organization has been working on

DFT problems for more than a decade.

Back in the early 90s, Mentor hired some

of the smartest people from industry and

academia and developed a DFT Center of

Excellence. Two years ago, as this

research moved from the incubator to

prototype stage, the DFT Division turned

this R&D group into a product group. 

On the way to EDT, these developers 

produced our industry-leading FastScan

technology, logic BIST (built-in self-test),

memory BIST products, and other DFT

products. In fact, Mentor has the largest

selection of DFT tools on the market, all

developed right here in our own labs.

5

“Some technologies you can’t buy; you have to
buckle down and invent them. That’s what we did
with EDT and TestKompress. We looked at long-
term customer needs, applied the latest results of
advanced research, and developed technology that
will fundamentally change the way manufacturing
test will be done for years to come.”

Janusz Rajski,
Chief Scientist and Manager of ATPG and 
EDT Business Unit, Mentor Graphics



This past year has been one of continued

success and growth for Mentor’s Calibre®

technology, the undisputed leader in IC

physical verification and manufactura-

bility. In 2000, Calibre grew its market

share in the design-rule checking segment

from 40 percent to 57 percent, with 2001

market share estimated at 70 percent.

Aiming to solve additional customer prob-

lems, we extended the core Calibre hierar-

chical engine technology further down-

stream, adding Mask Data Preparation

(MDP). Calibre MDP allows designers to

export IC layout data directly into mask

writer formats. Building on the core capa-

bilities of design rule checking and layout

versus schematic verification, MDP —

combined with our well-established

Resolution Enhancement Technology

(RET) solutions — completes the backend

flow. The result is an integrated solution

from layout to silicon, thus expanding the

market for Mentor products and Calibre.

Easing Another Capital Equipment Bottleneck

As with TestKompress, an EDA product

that solves a capital spending problem (in

ATE), our MDP module of Calibre solves

capital equipment overload for mask

manufacturers. Mask data preparation is a

serious bottleneck in the semiconductor

industry, with data volumes exploding as

dimensions shrink and customers adopt

data-intensive RET. When IC designers

finish the tapeout verification and RET

application and move to mask, they

traditionally moved out of Calibre to

another tool that “flattens” the data —

ballooning it in size sometimes by a factor

of ten or more. These larger files take

longer to run on $12M mask writer

machines, increase inspection time, and

slow time to market, making masks even

more expensive.

Market Re-education: Flatten Later

Mentor’s innovation is to preserve the

hierarchy in the design data by using the

Calibre extends into mask
data preparation

– Taking Designers from Layout to Silicon
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Mentor aligned three

teams — IC designers,

mask manufacturers,

and mask writer 

manufacturers —

to define a product

that makes life 

simpler for all.



Calibre hierarchical engine for as long as

possible. Calibre MDP preserves the

design hierarchy well into the mask data

preparation stage and allows designers to

continue using hierarchical efficiencies

for the data-intensive RET-treated designs.

They also avoid the complications and

problems of flattened data. For some

newer mask writers, the hierarchical

GDSII format provides more efficient

input to the mask writing machine, lowers

mask costs, improves yields, and reduces

mask writing and inspection time.

Calibre MDP speeds both the geometry

processing and the export to mask writer

format, phases of mask data preparation.

Geometry processing includes such steps

as layer derivation, Booleans, sizing, mask

rule checking, mask proximity correction,

and planarization fill, all of which are

more efficiently processed in open,

standard hierarchical design formats.

MDP export to mask writer formats is the

7

“Our customers requested that we extend Calibre
into MDP to complete the flow from layout to
silicon. We successfully collaborated with the mask
equipment industry and leading-edge mask
manufacturers and semiconductor customers who
want a modern, complete solution for design-to-
silicon, especially at the 130 and 100 nm nodes.”

Joseph Sawicki,
General Manager, Physical Verification Division,
Mentor Graphics

process of converting design data in an

open, standard, hierarchical format to a

proprietary format optimized for specific

mask writer equipment. This step should

be reserved to the last possible minute to

preserve the inherent efficiency of

hierarchical design manipulation.

By extending our core, successful Calibre

engine downstream in the design flow, we

allow customers to stay in the Calibre

environment longer, saving time and

money, speeding time to market, and

improving yields.



There’s been a lot of investment in supply

chains and a lot of investment in design

automation. But until last year, there’s been

no way to link the engineer’s desktop to the

supply chain and other business-critical

systems. Mentor’s new Data Management

System (DMS) 2000.5 extends an organi-

zation’s investment in supply chain auto-

mation to the designer’s desktop, vastly

improving engineering productivity and

reducing new product costs.

In today’s globally integrated, just-in-time

environment, product designers need to be

connected to supply chains, to business

enterprise applications, and to contract

manufacturers to get and publish up-to-

date information and react in real time.

Designers spend more than 25 percent of

their time searching for relevant com-

ponent data amongst a myriad of sources.

Design Data Management (DDM) inte-

grates design data with supplier, business,

manufacturing, and planning data, giving

designers quick access to multiple data

sources from a single point. It lets them

zero in on the right parts and the lowest-

cost parts in the least amount of time.

This past year, Mentor introduced a DDM

product called the Data Management

System (DMS) 2000.5 family. DMS gives

design engineers of PC board-based

products a huge productivity boon by

integrating:

■ EDA tools from Mentor and other

vendors

■ Business and enterprise data from

applications such as SAP, i2, BAAN, 

and Oracle ERP

■ Supplier data

■ Contract manufacturer data

DMS bridges the design-
supply chain gap

– Designers Close in on the Information They Need
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“DMS 2000.5 is a very

strong initial offering 

in the design data

management market.”

CIMdata Program Review,

December 2001 



DMS not only makes parts information

easy to find but makes sure all the infor-

mation is current and tells them when 

outside parts will become obsolete. 

A staggering 90 percent of a product’s

cost is determined in the design phase;

DMS gives designers instant visibility 

into which parts are the most cost-

effective, where to get them, and how 

long they’ll be available.

ROI of Less than One Year

Already installed at nearly 20 customer

sites, DMS has demonstrated an im-

pressive ROI of eight to nine months. 

A fast implementation coupled with a

dramatic increase in engineering pro-

ductivity allows companies to earn back

their DMS investment in less than a

year — a phenomenal accomplishment 

for an infrastructure product.

These customers have seen an average 20-

25 percent reduction in design time from

using DMS. One DMS customer reduced

the time and cost for supplier analysis by

75 percent. DMS not only optimizes

designer productivity but speeds up the

whole development cycle, including

manufacturing prep, supplier interactions,

and contract manufacturer negotiations. 

In a challenging market environment with

tight budgets, customers will give first

priority to infrastructure products such as

DMS with proven, fast ROI.
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“Product design today is a global process, drawing
on resources from all over the world. DMS lets
designers tap into their organizations’ business
systems as well as a world of supplier data over
the Internet. It’s a tremendous growth opportunity
for Mentor.”

Dr. Uwe Schmid,
Managing Director, Data Management Systems,
Mentor Graphics



In an effort to move new products to mar-

ket ever faster, application-specific inte-

grated circuits (ASIC) and field program-

mable gate arrays (FPGA) designers today

are developing System-on-Chip (SoC)

designs using off-the-shelf components

such as processors, memory, and other

Intellectual Property (IP). The goal is to

quickly snap together the 80 percent of the

design that’s non-original and spend most

of your time on the 20 percent that

contains your unique added value.

Mentor’s new Platform Express™ environ-

ment is the industry’s first tool for rapidly

creating, configuring, and verifying these

platform-based, System-on-Chip designs.

It enables design teams to quickly con-

figure a platform core and its correspon-

ding peripherals and software in a virtual

prototype. Simultaneously, it generates a

custom verification environment to verify

interfaces between platform elements and

off-the-shelf components. By streamlining

tedious and error-prone design, assembly,

integration, and verification steps,

Platform Express shaves months off

aggressive product development cycles

and allows designers to focus on

differentiating their products.

Shrinking Weeks-long Tasks to Minutes

As designers drag and drop components

into the Platform Express graphical editor,

they realize systems as block diagrams.

Platform Express automatically creates

the necessary connections between

components, then generates custom con-

figuration data and execution sequences

required to verify the designs. It’s the only

tool that lets designers assemble, inte-

grate, configure, and verify their designs

in an integrated, closed-loop fashion.

Platform Express speeds
platform design

– Double-Team Assembly and Verification
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Platform Express

enables designers to

concurrently assemble

and verify large,

complex SoCs to

dramatically shrink

design times.



The time savings? A typical assembly 

of base configuration for a large ARM-

core-based system that takes eight to ten

weeks to design and build using tradi-

tional disjointed methods takes about 15

minutes in Platform Express. With con-

sumers clamoring for more advanced cell

phones, PDAs, and other digital products

every few months, Platform Express helps

reduce the repetitive work of assembling,

testing, and re-testing off-the-shelf com-

ponents—freeing expensive designers to

focus on creative work that adds value.

Expands Opportunities for Seamless

Designers verify their designs using

Mentor Graphic’s Seamless® co-verifica-

tion environment or third-party tools.

Seamless already has 90 percent market

share in the co-verification market, but

Platform Express will allow Mentor to

take Seamless into the mainstream,

opening up even larger markets and

revenue opportunities.

Competitors are just now moving into 

the combined SoC assembly and verifi-

cation market, but Mentor is at least a year

ahead. With more companies creating

virtual components and looking for a 

way to deliver their IP to the market,

Platform Express provides a universal

“glue” that connects a dizzying array of

pieces. That’s good for both designers of

IP and users of IP out to create the next

big product.
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“Platform Express brings together Mentor’s core
strengths in intellectual property cores, embedded
software, simulation, and emulation to meet the
challenges of platform-based design head-on by
driving down costs, improving designer productivity
and reducing time-to-market.

Serge Leef,
General Manager, System-on-Chip Verification
Division, Mentor Graphics



FPGAs are surprising everyone with 

their breathless pace of innovation. The

degree of technology and chip complexity

that ASICs achieved in 15 years took

FPGAs just five years. Today’s FPGAs

process gigabits of data, run at speeds of

500 MHz, and contain multiple millions

of transistors.

FPGAs are flexible platforms for fast-

changing markets such as network infra-

structure and telecommunications that

demand new-feature overhauls every six

months. To help designers stay ahead of

the curve and meet these tight time-to-

market windows, Mentor is introducing 

a new tool for programmable logic

synthesis: Precision™ Synthesis.

Unmatched FPGA Synthesis Expertise

Mentor Graphics has commanded a leader-

ship position in programmable logic

synthesis for years through acquisition 

of ExemplarLogic™. Our Precision

Synthesis tool represents an entirely new

approach to synthesis that considers the

complete scope of the FPGA design,

including register transfer level (RTL),

physical, and architectural synthesis. This

innovation is enabled largely through

Mentor’s longstanding partnerships with

programmable device market leaders

Altera Corporation and Xilinx, Inc. By

having early access to next-generation

device technology, we are able to stay

ahead of the design curve.

Speeds Design at Several Levels

Precision Synthesis delivers functionality

in three key areas:

■ FPGA synthesis. Precision Synthesis

incorporates years of design knowledge

into an intuitive synthesis solution that

provides FPGA designers with excellent

quality of results and the industry’s 

most accurate timing analysis. Unlike

other tools, Precision Synthesis automat-

Precision Synthesis:
power for programmable
logic synthesis

– Mentor Unleashes Second-Generation Contender
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The quality of a

designer’s synthesis

tool greatly determines

his success in the race.

Precision Synthesis is

the smartest, richest

tool he can get.



ically finds and fixes timing problems

prior to programming the FPGA, avoid-

ing costly and frustrating second passes

of the design.

■ Physical synthesis. Leveraging technol-

ogy from Mentor’s proven ASIC timing

closure tool, TeraPlace™, Precision

Physical Synthesis bridges the gap

between the logical and physical worlds,

creating a single synthesis solution.

Precision Physical Synthesis optimizes

both the logic and the physical domains of

the design to achieve timing closure.

■ High-level synthesis. With Precision

High-Level Synthesis designers can 

move to the next level of synthesis

abstraction for faster design creation and

verification. With Precision High-Level

Synthesis, designers will be able to trade

off architectures quickly by working at 

the architectural level of their design,

allowing for rapid design exploration 

and implementation.

Synthesis — a Critical Step

As FPGAs increase in complexity, Mentor

is well positioned to provide a breadth of

tools to meet programmable design needs.

Synthesis is a critical piece of the whole

design process. The richness and intelli-

gence of the synthesis tool determines the

quality of the end product. It’s all about

time to profit: Precision Synthesis gives

designers a smarter, more elegant tool for

getting better products to market sooner.

13

“Mentor Graphics was the first EDA supplier
to recognize how FPGAs would change the
landscape for silicon design. By dominating
this market space and securing deep
relationships with the programmable logic
vendors, Mentor has a very clear vision of
next-generation design methods. Precision
Synthesis is architected after this vision and
is designed to keep Mentor the premier
supplier of EDA tools for FPGAs.”

Michael Bohm,
Chief Scientist, Mentor Graphics



Unlike rowing, in business there’s never 

a point at which you say, “We won!” 

In 2001, Mentor definitely won its races

in several markets, but there’s no letting

up. The technology keeps advancing. 

The industry keeps adapting. The market

keeps demanding more.

The only way to keep up is to keep

innovating. This past year, Mentor saw

tremendous return on its R&D invest-

ments. We introduced new products that

will not only generate revenue for Mentor

but will save customers millions of dollars

and precious development time. These

new products will be our engines for

growth for years to come.

Meanwhile, back in our labs, we keep

inventing tomorrow’s new products.

There is no finish line
– Inventing to Win
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Item 1. Business

This Form 10-K contains forward-looking statements that involve risks

and uncertainties. Actual results may differ materially from the forward-

looking statements. Factors that could cause or contribute to such

differences include, but are not limited to, those set forth under the

caption “Factors That May Affect Future Results and Financial

Condition” under “Item 7, Management’s Discussion and Analysis of

Results of Operations and Financial Condition.”

GENERAL
Mentor Graphics Corporation (the Company) is a technology leader in

electronic design automation (EDA), providing software and hardware

design tools that enable companies to send better electronic products to

market faster and more cost-effectively. The Company manufactures,

markets and supports EDA products and provides related services,

which together are used by engineers to design, analyze, simulate,

model, implement and verify the components of electronic systems.

The Company markets its products and services worldwide, primarily

to large companies in the communications, computer, consumer

electronics, semiconductor, aerospace, networking, multimedia and

transportation industries. Customers use the Company’s products in the

design of such diverse products as automotive electronics, video game

consoles, telephone-switching systems, cellular handsets, computer

network hubs and routers, signal processors, personal computers, video

conferencing equipment, 3-D graphics boards, digital audio broadcast

radios, smart cards and products enabled with the Bluetooth short-range

wireless radio technology. The Company licenses its products through

its direct sales force and an affiliated channel of distributors and sales

representatives where a direct sales presence is not warranted or cost

effective. The Company was incorporated in Oregon in 1981 and its

common stock is traded on the Nasdaq National Market under the

symbol “MENT.” The Company’s executive offices are located at 8005

S.W. Boeckman Road, Wilsonville, Oregon 97070-7777. The telephone

number at that address is (503) 685-7000. The Company website

address is www.mentor.com.

PRODUCTS
The Company offers products that help engineers overcome the increas-

ingly complex challenges they face in the design of electronic systems.

The Company’s products are intended to make design engineers more

productive, enable designs not otherwise possible, improve the accuracy

of complex designs and shrink time-to-market schedules.

Electrical engineers begin the electronic design process by describing

the architectural, behavioral, functional and structural characteristics of

an integrated circuit (IC), a printed circuit board (Board), a field pro-

grammable gate array (FPGA) or an electronic system. In this process

the engineer describes the overall product system architecture, imple-

ments it by creating a design description, simulates the design to reveal

defects and reiterates the description until it meets the previously deter-

mined design specifications. Engineers use the Company’s products to

specify the components of the IC, Board or FPGA, determine the

interconnections among the components and define the components’

associated physical properties. Engineers also use the Company’s

simulation products throughout the design process to identify design

errors before the design is manufactured. Simulation also gives engin-

eers the ability to test design alternatives. Engineers use the Company’s

verification products to identify functionality and performance issues

while the cost to correct is still low. The Company’s test products are

used by engineers to produce test sets to identify defective parts during

the manufacturing process.

Systems Design

The Company’s Board design software products support the printed

circuit design process from schematic entry, where the electronic circuit

is defined by engineers, through physical layout of the Board, to

providing digital output data for manufacturing, assembly and test.

Most types of designs, including analog, radio frequency (RF), high

speed digital and mixed signal, are supported by Board design tools.

The Company has specific integrated products for process manage-

ment, component library creation, simulation and verification of the

Board design. The Board Station® and Expedition™ series are the two

main Board design families of products.

The Company expects its current AutoActive® products, with next

generation place and route technology on UNIX and Windows NT, to

replace older generation routers in Board design flows from the

Company, Cadence Design Systems, Inc. and others. The AutoActive

tool, which is incorporated into both the Board Station and Expedition

product lines, enables improved design quality, design cycles and

manufacturability through increased productivity, reduced interactive

and automatic routing times and shorter learning curves. The

Company’s ICX™ high-speed design technology tools facilitate the

development of Board designs that require high clock speeds, sub-

nanosecond edge rates and tight timing and signal integrity margins.
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The Company introduced its first product offering in the design data

management market to further the Company’s overall systems tool

strategy to bring added value to customers by enhancing all elements of

the electronic design process. Built on DataFusion™ technology, an

object oriented relational technology that enables parametric search

capabilities, Data Management Systems (DMS) tools consolidate and

manage data. DMS tools allow customers to integrate electronic design

processes into their global business processes.

In the cabling area, the Company’s Harness Systems business unit

provides specialized software for design, analysis, manufacture and data

management of complex wire harness systems used by automotive,

aerospace, shipbuilding, home appliance and other industries.

FPGA Design

The Company offers a full suite of FPGA design tools, including pro-

ducts for design creation, documentation, verification, co-verification,

embedded software, intellectual property and FPGA on Board.

Hardware Description Languages (HDLs) supported by these products

include Verilog, VHDL and mixed HDL.

The HDL Designer Series covers all aspects of the high-end HDL

design creation and management process with a family of HDL capture,

analysis, documentation and management tools. According to a Gartner

Dataquest October 2001 report, the Company’s ModelSim® product

holds the number one market position in mixed-language simulation,

which is heavily used for FPGA simulation. For synthesis, the Com-

pany’s Precision™ Synthesis product is a next-generation synthesis

platform that maximizes the performance of both existing FPGA and

multi-million gate field programmable system-on-chip devices. The

Company’s FPGA Advantage® offering combines features of the HDL

Designer Series, ModelSim and LeonardoSpectrum™ products to

provide a complete design flow and a unified solution for FPGA design

within a single tool. The FPGA Advantage tool features the Company’s

patented Interface-Based-Design™ technology that allows designers to

simplify interconnect creation problems using a unique display format.

Physical Verification and Analysis

The Calibre® product line is specifically engineered for physical

verification and manufacturability of leading-edge submicron circuit

designs and, according to a Gartner Dataquest October 2001 report, is

the market leader. The Calibre tools are used through physical design 

as well as during the last steps before a chip design is sent off to mask

making and silicon manufacturing. The Calibre tool is the only solution

that integrates physical verification with subwavelength design reso-

lution enhancement and mask data preparation. The Calibre physical

verification tool suite, Calibre DRC™ and Calibre LVS™, helps ensure

that IC physical designs conform to foundry manufacturing rules and

match the intended functionality of the chip. For subwavelength

designs, the Calibre product line leverages its verification engine to

provide a tool suite to add, model and verify layouts for all four

resolution enhancement technology (RET) techniques: optical and

process correction (OPC); phase-shift mask (PSM); scattering bars

(SB); and off-axis illumination. With the addition of mask data prep-

aration (MDP) capability, the Calibre tool has extended this flow to

mask manufacturing. The Calibre solution is the standard for the

majority of the world’s largest integrated device manufacturers,

foundries and leading-edge submicron library providers.

Along with the ModelSim digital simulator, the Company’s MachTA™

leading-edge submicron simulator and Eldo™ analog/mixed-signal

simulator address the unique challenges of analog/mixed-signal and

leading-edge submicron designs. These products allow circuit designers

to verify the functionality and performance of very large and complex

designs quickly and accurately while avoiding long verification cycles,

excessive iterations and expensive silicon turns. The MachTA tool

provides fast, accurate, dynamic timing analysis and detailed transistor

level circuit simulation with SPICE-like accuracy for memory and

processor IC designs. The ELDO analog and system simulator software

products are primarily used for the design and verification of complex

analog effects in digital circuits. The ADVance MS™ tool combines

ModelSim, Eldo and MachTA simulator technology into a single,

integrated tool.

System-on-Chip Verification and Test

The Company provides its customers critical tools for solving the

increasingly complicated problems of verifying that today’s complex

chip designs actually function as intended. The Company’s System-on-

Chip (SoC) solution consists of two major categories: Design Reuse

and SoC Verification. The Company provides reusable intellectual

property through its Inventra™ IP division. SoC Verification products

include the Company’s XRAY® embedded software debugging pro-

ducts, the Seamless® hardware/software co-verification software

product and the Celaro™ accelerated verification hardware products.

Embedded software controls the function of hardware components

dedicated to specialized tasks of such common consumer products as

cellular telephones and set-top boxes. The Seamless product family

enables simultaneous simulation of the hardware and software com-

ponents of a system design. These tools verify the software-hardware

interface by running the software against simulated models of the hard-

ware. Seamless tools allow designers to verify software much earlier in

the system design process instead of waiting until the hardware design
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has been completed, verified and manufactured into a prototype. Early

verification of the system identifies functionality and performance

issues while the cost to correct them is smaller and reduces the overall

design cycle. The Celaro accelerated verification hardware products of

the Company’s Meta Systems SARL (Meta) subsidiary are marketed

outside of the U.S. Based on the Company’s “Custom Emulator on

Silicon” architecture, the operation of the Celaro system involves

creation of a hardware emulation of the SoC design which is then

verified at speeds many times fast than a software simulator.

The Company’s suite of integrated Design-for-Test (DFT) solutions for

testing an ASIC or IC design’s logic and memories includes scan inser-

tion, automatic test pattern generation (ATPG), logic and memory built-

in self-test (BIST), boundary scan and embedded deterministic test

(EDT). As part of the ATPG solution, the DFTAdvisor™, FastScan™ and

FlexTest™ tools provide scan insertion, automatic test pattern generation

and diagnostics for production and yield improvements. The Company’s

BIST solution includes MBISTArchitect™, a flexible tool for testing a

design’s embedded memories and LBISTArchitect™, a complete DFT

solution for analysis, insertion and simulation of logic BIST, which is

used in board and system designs. BSDArchitect™ provides boundary

scan insertion and chip-level test control. In addition, the Company’s

recent breakthrough development of patented Embedded Deterministic

Test (EDT™) technology increases the capacity of costly automatic test

equipment by compressing test data, resulting in a significant reduction

in the cost of semiconductor testing. The Company’s first EDT product,

TestKompress™, allows semiconductor manufacturers to reduce the

automatic test equipment memory and time requirements for testing

ASIC, IC and SoC designs by up to ten times.

PLATFORMS
The Company’s software products are available on UNIX, Windows NT

and LINUX platforms in a broad range of price and performance levels.

Platforms are purchased by customers primarily from Hewlett-Packard

Company, Sun Microsystems Inc. and leading personal computer

suppliers. These computer manufacturers have a substantial installed

base and make frequent introductions of new products.

MARKETING AND CUSTOMERS
The Company’s marketing emphasizes a direct sales force and large

corporate account penetration in the communications, computer,

consumer electronics, semiconductor, aerospace and transportation

industries. The Company licenses its products through its direct sales

force and sales representatives in North America and a direct sales force

and distributors in the rest of the world. During the years ending

December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, sales outside of the Americas

accounted for 51%, 52% and 51% of total sales. The Company enters

into foreign currency forward and option contracts in an effort to help

mitigate the impact of foreign currency fluctuations. These contracts do

not eliminate all potential impact of foreign currency fluctuations and

significant exchange rate movements may have a material adverse

impact on the Company’s results. See pages 29-32, “Factors That May

Affect Future Results and Financial Condition,” for a discussion of the

effect foreign currency fluctuation may have on the Company’s business

and operating results.

No material portion of the Company’s business is dependent on a single

customer. The Company has traditionally experienced some seasonal

fluctuations of orders, which are typically stronger in the second and

fourth quarters of the year. Due to the complexity of the Company’s

products, the selling cycle can be three to six months or longer. During

the selling cycle the Company’s account managers, application engi-

neers and technical specialists make technical presentations and product

demonstrations to the customer. At some point during the selling cycle,

the Company’s products may also be “loaned” to customers for on-site

evaluation. As is typical of many other companies in the electronics

industry, the Company generally ships its products to customers within

180 days after receipt of an order, and a substantial portion of quarterly

shipments tend to be made in the last month of each quarter.

The Company licenses its products and some third party products pur-

suant to purchase and license agreements. The Company generally sched-

ules deliveries after receipt of purchase orders under these agreements.

UNIVERSITY PROGRAMS
The Company shares its technology and expertise with universities

worldwide through its Higher Education Program (HEP). Founded in

1985 because the Company believes the success of the electronics

industry is dependent upon highly skilled engineers, the HEP offers

colleges and universities a cost-effective way to acquire the Company’s

state-of-the-art tools for teaching and academic research.

BACKLOG
The Company’s backlog of firm orders was approximately $64 million

on December 31, 2001 as compared to $108 million on December 31,

2000. This backlog includes products requested for delivery within six

months and unfulfilled professional services and training requested for

delivery within one year. The Company does not track backlog for

support services. Support services are typically delivered under annual

contracts that are accounted for on a pro rata basis over the twelve-

month term of each contract. Substantially all the December 31, 2001

backlog of orders is expected to ship during 2002.
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MANUFACTURING OPERATIONS
The Company’s manufacturing operations primarily consist of reproduc-

tion of the Company’s software and documentation. In the Americas,

manufacturing is substantially outsourced, with distribution to Western

Hemisphere customers occurring from major West Coast sites in the

U.S. The Company’s line of accelerated verification products, which is

primarily comprised of hardware, is manufactured in France. Mentor

Graphics (Ireland) Limited manufactures and distributes the Company’s

products to all markets outside the Americas through the Company’s

established sales channels.

PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT
The Company’s research and development is focused on continued im-

provement of its existing products and the development of new products.

During the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, the Com-

pany expensed $137,799,000, $125,952,000 and $116,867,000 res-

pectively, related to product research and development. The Company

also seeks to expand existing product offerings and pursue new lines of

business through acquisitions. The Company’s future success depends

on its ability to develop or acquire competitive new products that satisfy

customer requirements.

CUSTOMER SUPPORT AND CONSULTING
The Company has a worldwide organization to meet its customers’

needs for software and hardware support. The Company offers support

contracts providing software updates and support and hardware support

for emulation products. Most of the Company’s customers have entered

into software or hardware support contracts. The Company has won five

Software Technical Assistance Recognition (STAR) Awards from the

Software Support Professionals Association for superior service in the

Complex Support category. This category acknowledges companies that

consistently provide a superior level of support for software used in

high-end, mission-critical applications in fields such as engineering

science, telecommunications and other technical environments. Mentor

Consulting, the Company’s consulting division, is comprised of a

worldwide team of consulting professionals. The Company’s consulting

group was established in 1987. The services provided to customers by

Mentor Consulting include advising customers on design process,

design reuse and IC verification and test. Design process consulting

helps customers improve how they design. Design reuse consulting

helps customers modify existing designs for use in new designs. Mentor

Consulting’s model for delivering services, Knowledge-SourcingSM,

focuses on solving a customer’s immediate design challenge while

giving the organization the knowledge it needs to solve similar

challenges in the future.

COMPETITION
The markets for the Company’s products are competitive and are

characterized by price reductions, rapid technological advances in

application software, operating systems and hardware and new market

entrants. The EDA industry tends to be labor intensive rather than

capital intensive. This means that the number of actual and potential

competitors is significant. While many competitors are large companies

with extensive capital and marketing resources, the Company also

competes with small companies with little capital but innovative ideas.

The Company believes the main competitive factors affecting its

business are breadth and quality of application software, product

integration, ability to respond to technological change, quality of a

company’s sales force, price, size of the installed base, level of cus-

tomer support and professional services. The Company believes that it

generally competes favorably in these areas. The Company can give no

assurance, however, that it will have financial resources, marketing,

distribution and service capability, depth of key personnel or tech-

nological knowledge to compete successfully in its markets.

The Company’s principal competitors are Cadence Design Systems,

Inc., Synopsys, Inc. and numerous small companies.

EMPLOYEES
The Company and its subsidiaries employed approximately 3,114

people full time as of December 31, 2001. The Company’s success 

will depend in part on its ability to attract and retain employees. The

Company continues to enjoy satisfactory employee relations.

PATENTS AND LICENSES
The Company holds 71 U.S. and 13 foreign patents on various

technologies. In 2001, the Company was granted 22 patents and filed

69 patent applications worldwide. As of January 2002, the Company

has a total of 172 patent applications filed and pending and an addi-

tional 22 in process but not yet filed. While the Company believes the

pending applications relate to patentable technology, there can be no

assurance that any patent will be issued or that any patent can be suc-

cessfully defended. Although the Company believes that patents are less

significant to the success of its business than technical competence,

management ability, marketing capability and customer support, the

Company believes that software patents are becoming increasingly

important in the software industry.

The Company regards its products as proprietary and protects all

products with copyrights, trade secret laws and internal non-disclosure

safeguards, as well as patents, when appropriate, as noted above. The

Company typically includes restrictions on disclosure, use and trans-

ferability in its agreements with customers and other third parties.
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Item 2. Properties

The Company owns six buildings on 53 acres of land in Wilsonville,

Oregon. The Company occupies 396,576 square feet, in five of those

buildings, as its corporate headquarters. The Company leases the re-

maining building to a third party. The Company also owns an additional

69 acres of undeveloped land adjacent to its headquarters. All corporate

functions and a substantial amount of the Company’s domestic research

and development operations are located at the Wilsonville site.

The Company leases additional space in San Jose, California, Longmont,

Colorado, Huntsville, Alabama and Beaverton, Oregon, where some of

its domestic research and development takes place, and in various loca-

tions throughout the U.S. and in other countries, primarily for sales and

customer service operations. Additional research and development is

done in locations outside the U.S. including locations in France,

Germany, India, Egypt, Japan and the UK. The Company believes that

it will be able to renew or replace its existing leases as they expire and

that its current facilities will be adequate through at least 2002.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

In October 1997, Quickturn, a competitor, filed an action against the

Company’s German subsidiary in a German District Court alleging

infringement by SimExpress of a European patent 0437491 (EP’491).

The Company was unable to challenge the validity of EP’491 under an

assignor estoppel theory and the German court ruled in April 1999 that

the German subsidiary’s sales of SimExpress violated EP’491 and

awarded unspecified damages. In February 2001, in unrelated litigation,

the Federal Patent Court in Germany ruled that EP’491 is null and void

in Germany. The German District Court, in response to the nullification

of the Quickturn patent, suspended its April 1999 judgment of infringe-

ment against SimExpress. The Company has appealed the court’s

application of assignor estoppel. Quickturn has appealed the invalida-

tion of EP’491. The German Supreme Court will hear both appeals.

In October 1998, Quickturn filed an action against Meta and the Com-

pany in France alleging infringement by SimExpress and Celaro of

EP’491. There have been no rulings by the French court regarding the

merits of this case to date. In 2001, the Company filed suit against

Cadence and Quickturn (Quickturn became a Cadence subsidiary in

1999.) in France claiming misappropriation of patent rights. This case

alleges that Quickturn misappropriated Meta trade secrets during

Quickturn’s evaluation of Meta’s technology in connection with a pos-

sible acquisition of Meta in 1994 and 1995 and filed one or more patent

applications claiming rights to inventions Quickturn learned from Meta.

The Company has two consolidated lawsuits pending in U.S. District

Court for the Northern District of California alleging that Quickturn’s

Mercury or MercuryPlus products infringe six Company-owned patents.

The Company is seeking a permanent injunction prohibiting sales and

support of Quickturn’s Mercury and MercuryPlus products in the U.S.,

along with damages and attorney’s fees. The Company also has pending

a misappropriation of trade secret case in U.S. District Court for the

Northern District of California. This case alleges that Quickturn mis-

appropriated Meta trade secrets during Quickturn’s evaluation of Meta’s

technology in connection with a possible acquisition of Meta in 1994

and 1995. The Company also alleges that Quickturn filed a U.S. patent

application claiming technology Quickturn learned from Meta in the

same period. The Company asks the court to correct the inventorship of

the resulting U.S. patent. This case has been consolidated with the

patent infringement lawsuit for purposes of discovery and scheduling.

The Company expects trial in the patent infringement lawsuits and the

trade secret case to occur around October 2002.

In addition to the above litigation, from time to time the Company is

involved in various disputes and litigation matters that arise from the

ordinary course of business. These include disputes and lawsuits relat-

ing to intellectual property rights, licensing, contracts and employee

relation matters.
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Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of 
Security Holders

No matters were submitted to a vote of the security holders of the

Company during the fourth quarter of the fiscal year ended December

31, 2001.

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF REGISTRANT
The following are the executive officers of the Company:

Name Position Age

Walden C. Rhines Chairman of the Board and 
Chief Executive Officer 55

Gregory K. Hinckley President and Director 55
L. Don Maulsby Senior Vice President, World Trade 50
Dean Freed Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary 43
Anne (Wagner) Sanquini Vice President and General Manager 

Hardware Description Language (HDL) Division 49
Henry Potts Vice President and General Manager 

Systems Design Division (SDD) 55
Jue-Hsien Chern Vice President and General Manager 

Deep Submicron (DSM) Division 47
Brian Derrick Vice President, Corporate Marketing 38
Anthony B. Adrian Vice President, Corporate Controller 59
Dennis Weldon Treasurer 54

The executive officers are elected by the Board of Directors of the

Company at its annual meeting. Officers hold their positions until 

they resign, are terminated or their successors are elected. There are 

no arrangements or understandings between the officers or any other

person pursuant to which officers were elected and none of the officers

are related.

Dr. Rhines has served as Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive

Officer since November 2000. Dr. Rhines served as Director, President

and Chief Executive Officer of the Company from October 1993 to

October 2000. Dr. Rhines is currently a director of Cirrus Logic, Inc.

and Triquint Semiconductor, Inc., both semiconductor manufacturers.

Mr. Hinckley has served as President since November 2000. Mr.

Hinckley served as Executive Vice President, Chief Operating Officer

and Chief Financial Officer of the Company from January 1997 to

October 2000. From November 1995 until December 1996, he held 

the position of Senior Vice President with VLSI Technology, Inc., a

manufacturer of complex ASICs. Mr. Hinckley is a director of Amkor

Technology, Inc., an IC packaging, assembly and test services company.

Mr. Maulsby has served as Senior Vice President, World Trade since

October 1999. From June 1998 to October 1999, he was president of

Tri-Tech and Associates, a manufacturer’s representative firm. From

June 1997 to June 1998 he was Vice President of World Wide Sales and

Marketing for Interphase Corporation, a manufacturer of high per-

formance network and mass storage products. From April 1988 to

December 1997, he was employed by VLSI Technology, Inc. where his

duties included Vice President Worldwide Sales and Vice President and

General Manager of its Computing Division.

Mr. Freed has served as Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary

of the Company since July 1995. Mr. Freed served as Deputy General

Counsel and Assistant Secretary of the Company from April 1994 to

July 1995. He has been employed by the Company since January 1989.

Ms. Sanquini has served as Vice President and General Manager of the

Hardware Description Language Design Division since April 1999.

From June 1998 to April 1999, Ms. Sanquini served as Vice President,

Marketing for the Company. From 1996 to 1998, Ms. Sanquini was

Vice President of Corporate Marketing for the SunSoft operating

company of Sun Microsystems, Inc. Ms. Sanquini has been employed

by the Company since June 1998.

Mr. Potts has served as Vice President and General Manager of the

Systems Design Division since joining the Company in April 1999.

From 1997 to 1998, Mr. Potts was Vice President of Engineering for

Hitachi Micro Systems, a semiconductor research and development

company. From 1994 to 1997, he was employed by Motorola

Semiconductor where his duties included leading the development

activities for Advanced Signal Processor Silicon and software products.

Dr. Chern has served as Vice President and General Manager of the

Company’s Deep Submicron Division since joining the Company in

January 2000. From 1994 to 1998, Dr. Chern served as Vice President

and Chief Technology Officer for Technology Modeling Associates. 

In 1998 Technology Modeling Associates merged with Avant!

Corporation and Dr. Chern became head of Avant!’s DSM Business

Unit. From August 1999 to December 1999, Dr. Chern was President 

of Ultima Corporation.
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Mr. Derrick has served as Vice President, Corporate Marketing since

January 2002. From November 2000 to December 2001 he was Vice

President and General Manager of the Company’s Physical Verification

Division. From March 1998 to November 2000, he was the Director of

the Company’s Calibre and Velocity Strategic Business Unit. From

Jaunary 1997 to March 1998, he was marketing manager for the

Company’s Calibre Business Unit. Mr. Derrick was employed by Allied

Signal Corporation from 1988 to 1997, where his duties included

marketing manager. He has been employed by the Company since 1997.

Mr. Adrian has served as Vice President, Corporate Controller since

joining the Company in January 1998. From August to December of

1997, he held the position of Vice President and Acting Controller for

Wickland Oil Company, a petroleum marketing and distribution com-

pany. From January 1996 to August 1997, Mr. Adrian served as Manag-

ing Director of Wickland Terminals in Australia. From November 1992

to January 1996, Mr. Adrian served as Vice President and Controller of

Wickland Oil.

Mr. Weldon has served as Treasurer and Director of Corporate Business

Development since February 1996. Mr. Weldon served as Director of

Business Development from June 1994 to January 1996. Mr. Weldon

has been employed by the Company since July 1988.

Item 5. Market for the Registrant’s Common Equity and
Related Stockholder Matters

The Company’s Common Stock trades on the Nasdaq National Market

under the symbol “MENT.” The following table sets forth for the

periods indicated the high and low sales prices for the Company’s

Common Stock, as reported by the Nasdaq National Market:

Quarter ended March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31

2001
High $ 33.6250 $  28.9400 $ 18.9600 $  27.7100
Low $ 19.9375 $  16.7200 $  13.1100 $  13.2400

2000
High $ 18.5000 $  20.5625 $ 24.1250 $  29.3125
Low $ 11.5625 $  11.8750 $  17.7500 $  17.3125

As of December 31, 2001, the Company had 757 stockholders of record.

No dividends were paid in 2000 or 2001. The Company does not intend

to pay dividends in the foreseeable future.
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Item 6. Selected Consolidated Financial Data
In thousands,except per share data and percentages

Year ended December 31, 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997

Statement of Operations Data
Total revenues $ 600,371 $ 589,835 $ 511,134 $ 490,393 $ 454,727
Research and 
development $ 137,799 $ 125,952 $ 116,867 $ 117,001 $ 112,184

Operating income 
(loss) $   38,201 $   75,294 $   15,880 $     4,742 $ (36,370)

Net income (loss) $   31,104 $   54,987 $     2,234 $     (519) $ (31,307)
Gross margin 
percent 81% 80% 77% 75% 65%

Operating income 
(loss) as a percent 
of revenues 6% 13% 3% 1% (8)%

Per Share Data
Net income (loss) 
per share – basic $       0.48 $       0.86 $       0.03 $    (0.01) $    (0.48)

Net income (loss) 
per share – diluted $       0.46 $       0.81 $       0.03 $    (0.01) $     (0.48)

Weighted average 
number of shares 
outstanding – basic 64,436 64,125 65,629 65,165 64,885

Weighted average 
number of shares
outstanding – diluted 67,681 67,509 66,324 65,165 64,885

Balance Sheet Data
Cash and investments, 
short-term $ 147,176 $ 141,872 $ 133,187 $ 137,585 $ 137,060

Working capital $ 147,790 $ 132,695 $ 133,203 $ 148,313 $ 148,191
Property, plant and 
equipment, net $   82,247 $   82,560 $   83,970 $   95,214 $ 103,452

Total assets $ 523,475 $ 530,914 $ 451,386 $ 464,123 $ 402,302
Short-term 
borrowings $            – $            – $            – $   24,000 $            –

Notes payable and 
other liabilities, 
long-term $   14,466 $     7,247 $     1,221 $     1,425 $        617

Stockholders’ equity $ 328,462 $ 316,537 $ 288,780 $ 295,282 $ 277,537

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations
All numerical references in thousands, except percentages and per share data

NATURE OF OPERATIONS
The Company is a supplier of EDA systems — advanced computer

software, accelerated verification systems and intellectual property

designs and databases used to automate the design, analysis and testing

of electronic hardware and embedded systems software in electronic

systems and components. The Company markets its products and

services worldwide, primarily to large customers in the communica-

tions, computer, consumer electronics, semiconductor, aerospace,

networking, multimedia and transportation industries. The Company

sells and licenses its products through its direct sales force in North

America, Europe, Japan and Pacific Rim and an affiliated channel of

distributors and sales representatives where a direct sales presence is

not warranted or cost effective. In addition to its corporate offices in

Wilsonville, Oregon, the Company has sales, support, software

development and professional service offices worldwide.

RECENT DEVELOPMENTS
On December 7, 2001, the Company commenced an $11.00 per share

tender offer for all outstanding shares of IKOS Systems, Inc., a

Delaware corporation (IKOS), or approximately $93,500 for approxi-

mately 8,500 shares outstanding. Prior to commencement of this offer,

the Company purchased 842 shares of IKOS common stock for $6,216. 

On March 12, 2002, the Company announced the definitive agreement

to acquire all outstanding shares of IKOS. The transaction is expected

to be finalized by the end of the first quarter of 2002.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Revenues and Gross Margins
Year ended December 31, 2001 Change 2000 Change 1999

System and software 
revenues $ 333,215 (3)% $ 343,569 16% $ 295,325

System and software 
gross margins $ 306,478 (2)% $ 312,588 18% $ 265,599

Gross margin percent 92% 91% 90%
Service and support 
revenues $ 267,156 8% $ 246,266 14% $ 215,809

Service and support 
gross margins $ 179,220 13% $ 158,559 24% $ 127,481

Gross margin percent 67% 64% 59%
Total revenues $ 600,371 2% $ 589,835 15% $ 511,134
Total gross margins $ 485,698 3% $ 471,147 20% $ 393,080
Gross margin percent 81% 80% 77%
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SYSTEM AND SOFTWARE
System and software revenues are derived from the sale of licenses of

software products, third party owned software products for which the

Company pays royalties and accelerated verification systems. For

2001, the decrease in system and software revenue was attributable 

to a decline in accelerated verification systems sales, partially offset 

by increased software product sales. Accelerated verification systems

sales declined in 2001 due to the downturn in the semiconductor

industry. For 2001, the increase in software product sales was primarily

due to continued strength in the Physical Verification and Analysis and

Deep Submicron product lines. For 2001, this increase in software

product revenue occurred despite weakening of the Japanese yen

versus the U.S. dollar which negatively impacted revenues. See “Geo-

graphic Revenues Information” for further discussion. For 2000, the

increase in system and software revenue was primarily due to increased

software product sales and to a lesser extent, increased accelerated

verification systems sales. The growth in software product sales in

2000 was primarily attributable to strength in the Physical Verification

and Analysis product line and the acquisition of VeriBest, Inc.

(VeriBest) in the fourth quarter of 1999. Accelerated verification

systems realized strong demand in Japan.

System and software gross margins were higher for 2001 compared to

2000 due to greater mix of higher margin software product revenue

versus lower margin accelerated verification system revenue and to a

lesser extent lower product sales for which royalties were paid. System

and software gross margins were higher for 2000 compared to 1999 due

to greater software revenue and improved margins on accelerated

verification system sales.

Amortization of purchased technology costs to system and software

cost of revenues was $3,250, $2,766 and $1,363 for 2001, 2000 and

1999, respectively. The increase in amortization in 2001 was primarily

attributable to the acquisition of HSL Holdings Limited (Harness) in

the fourth quarter of 2000. The increase in amortization in 2000 was

primarily attributable to the acquisition of VeriBest in the fourth quarter

of 1999 and five acquisitions in 2000. Purchased technology costs are

amortized over three to five years to system and software cost of

revenues. Exclusive of future acquisitions, amortization of purchased

technology will decline in 2002 as a result of an $8,077 write-off of

purchased technology in 2001.

SERVICE AND SUPPORT
Service and support revenues consist of revenues from annual support

contracts and professional services, which includes consulting services,

training services, custom design services and other services. For 2001

compared to 2000, the increase was due to a 17% increase in software

support revenues, partially offset by a 29% decrease in consulting

revenues. For 2000 compared to 1999, the increase was due primarily 

to a 15% increase in software support revenues.

For 2001, growth in software support revenues was attributable to

current year software revenue growth and continued success of software

product offerings resulting in a higher rate of contract renewals. For

2000, growth in software support revenues was attributable to the

acquisition of VeriBest and growth in the installed base of customers.

Since growth in software support is affected by continued success of 

the software product offerings, increases in the Company’s installed

customer base and the impact of acquisitions, future software support

revenue levels are difficult to predict.

Professional service revenues totaled approximately $39,000, $54,000

and $50,000 in 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively. The decrease in 2001

was attributable to cuts in spending by the Company’s customers as a

result of the downturn in the economy. The increase in 2000 was

attributable to higher utilization of global consulting personnel.

Service and support gross margins increased in 2001 as a result of

higher software support revenue over a relatively constant cost structure

partially offset by lower professional service utilization. Service and

support gross margins increased in 2000 as a result of higher service

and support revenue over a relatively constant cost structure and

improved professional service utilization.
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GEOGRAPHIC REVENUES INFORMATION
Year ended December 31, 2001 Change 2000 Change 1999

Americas $ 293,828 5% $ 281,084 12% $ 249,968
Europe $ 174,025 (1)% $ 176,510 17% $ 150,833
Japan $   97,947 (1)% $   98,707 19% $   82,736
Pac Rim $   34,571 3% $   33,534 22% $   27,597

Total $ 600,371 – $ 589,835 $ 511,134

Americas revenues, including service and support revenues, increased

5% from 2000 to 2001 and increased 12% from 1999 to 2000. Revenues

outside the Americas represented 51% of total revenues in 2001, 52%

of revenues in 2000 and 51% of revenues in 1999. European revenues

decreased 1% from 2000 to 2001 and increased 17% from 1999 to

2000. The effects of exchange rate differences from the European cur-

rencies to the U.S. dollar negatively impacted European revenues by

approximately 1% and 8% in 2001 and 2000, respectively. Japanese

revenues decreased 1% from 2000 to 2001 and increased 19% from

1999 to 2000. The effects of exchange rate differences from the Japanese

yen to the U.S. dollar negatively impacted Japanese revenues by approx-

imately 12% in 2001 and positively impacted revenues by approxi-

mately 6% in 2000. Exclusive of currency effects, higher revenues in

Japan were attributable to growth in support sales. Since the Company

generates approximately half of its revenues outside of the U.S. and

expects this to continue in the future, revenue results should continue to

be impacted by the effects of future foreign currency fluctuations.

OPERATING EXPENSES
Year ended December 31, 2001 Change 2000 Change 1999

Research and development $ 137,799 9% $ 125,952 8% $ 116,867
Percent of total revenues 23% 21% 23%

Marketing and selling $ 198,639 0% $ 197,733 15% $ 172,386
Percent of total revenues 33% 34% 34%

General and administration $   54,565 (1)% $   55,002 17% $   47,134
Percent of total revenues 9% 9% 9%

Amortization of goodwill $     7,520 154% $     2,965 34% $     2,217
Percent of total revenues 1% 1% 0%

Special charges $   48,974 1776% $     2,611 (90)% $   25,821
Percent of total revenues 8% 0% 5%

Merger and acquisition 
related charges $            – (100)% $   11,590 (9)% $   12,775

Percent of total revenues – 2% 3%

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT
As a percent of revenues, R&D costs increased from 2000 to 2001 and

decreased from 1999 to 2000. For 2001 compared to 2000, the increase

in R&D spending was primarily attributable to the purchases of the

ECAD division of CADIX Incorporated (Cadix) and Harness in fourth

quarter of 2000. For 2000 compared to 1999, the increase in absolute

dollars was attributable to the purchase of Veribest in the fourth quarter

of 1999 and to a lesser extent acquisitions in 2000.

MARKETING AND SELLING
As a percent of revenues, marketing and selling costs decreased from

2000 to 2001 and were flat from 1999 to 2000. For 2001 compared to

2000, the increase in absolute dollars was primarily attributable to in-

creased product revenue. For 2000 compared to 1999, the increase in

marketing and selling costs was attributable to increased product

revenue and the negative impact of a weaker U.S. dollar compared to

the Japanese yen during 2000.

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATION
As a percent of revenues, general and administrative costs remained flat

from 2000 to 2001 and 1999 to 2000. For 2001 compared to 2000, the

decrease in absolute dollars was primarily attributable to lower variable

compensation as a result of performance below plan. For 2000

compared to 1999, the increase in absolute dollars was attributable to

variable compensation related to stronger performance.

AMORTIZATION OF GOODWILL
Goodwill represents the excess of the aggregate purchase price over the

fair value of the tangible assets and other identifiable intangible assets

acquired by the Company. Amortization of goodwill was $7,520,

$2,965 and $2,217 in 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively. For 2001

compared to 2000, the increase in amortization of goodwill was attribu-

table to the acquisitions of Cadix and Harness in the fourth quarter of

2000. For 2000 compared to 1999, the increase in amortization of

goodwill was attributable to the acquisition of VeriBest in the fourth

quarter of 1999, offset in part by asset impairments recorded in 2000

and the fourth quarter of 1999. 

In July 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 142, “Good-

will and Other Intangible Assets.” Beginning January 1, 2002, SFAS

No. 142 requires that goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite

useful lives will no longer be amortized to expense, but instead will be

tested for impairment at least annually. Intangible assets with definite

useful lives will continue to be amortized to expense. Accordingly,

amortization of goodwill will no longer occur under this new standard.

SPECIAL CHARGES
During 2001, the Company recorded special charges of $48,974. The

charges primarily consist of impairment in value of certain goodwill

and purchased technology, an accrual for excess leased facility costs

and costs incurred for employee terminations.
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The goodwill and purchased technology impairment charge was due to

performance of recent acquisitions not meeting initial estimates. This

charge was determined by comparing the forecasted undiscounted net

cash flows of the operations to which the intangible assets relate, to the

carrying amount including associated intangible assets of such opera-

tion. The operations were determined to be unable to recover the carry-

ing amount of their assets, resulting in a write-down to fair value. There

have been no significant modifications to the amount of these charges.

Excess leased facility costs consist of non-cancelable lease payments

and write-off of leasehold improvements for leases of four facilities in

North America and Europe. These facilities were permanently aban-

doned and costs are net of sublease income. Non-cancelable lease

payments on excess leased facilities should be expended over 14 years,

with the majority to be expended over 5 years. There have been no

significant modifications to the amount of these charges.

The Company rebalanced the workforce by 79 employees in June and

December 2001. This reduction impacted several employee groups.

Employee severance costs included severance benefits, notice pay and

outplacement services. Termination benefits were communicated to the

affected employees prior to year-end. The majority of these costs were

expended in 2001 and the remaining amount should be expended in the

first half of 2002. There have been no significant modifications to the

amount of these charges.

During 2000, the Company recorded special charges of $2,611. The

charges consist of impairment in value of certain goodwill and pur-

chased technology and costs for employee terminations due to the

acquisition of Escalade Corp. in May 2000. Substantially all of these

costs were expended in 2000 and the remaining amount was primarily

expended in the first half of 2001. There have been no significant

modifications to the amount of the charges.

During 1999, the Company recorded special charges of $25,821. The

charges included costs attributable to the terminated tender offer for

Quickturn Design Systems, Inc. (Quickturn) net of a gain from the 

sale of acquired stock, the terminated acquisition negotiations for

certain assets and liabilities of an EDA software company, and two

subsidiary divestitures and related employee terminations. In addition,

the Company incurred costs for other employee terminations due in part

to the acquisition of VeriBest and recognized impairment in value of

certain goodwill. Substantially all of these costs were expended in 1999

and the remaining amount was primarily expended in the first half of

2000. There have been no significant modifications to the amount of

the charges.

MERGER AND ACQUISITION RELATED CHARGES
In 2001, the Company incurred no merger and acquisition related

charges.

In 2000, the Company incurred merger and acquisition related charges

of $11,590 for in-process R&D related to four of the five business

combinations accounted for as purchases. The charges were a result of

allocating a portion of the acquisition costs to in-process product

development that had not reached technological feasibility.

In 1999, the Company completed two business combinations that were

accounted for as purchases. In January 1999, the Company completed

the purchase of the remaining minority interest of its then 84% owned

subsidiary, Exemplar. The purchase accounting allocation resulted in

charges for in process R&D and compensation and other related costs of

$624 and $6,951, respectively. On October 31, 1999, the Company pur-

chased certain assets and all liabilities of VeriBest. The purchase account-

ing allocations resulted in a charge for in-process R&D of $5,200.

OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE), NET
Year ended December 31, 2001 2000 1999

Other income (expense), net $ 670 $ (4,798) $ (13,011)

Other income (expense) was favorably impacted by lower legal costs

associated with the ongoing patent litigation with Quickturn. These costs

totaled $7,757 in 2001 compared to $11,705 and $15,312 for 2000 and

1999, respectively. The decrease from 2000 to 2001 was attributable to

reduced activity in the Quickturn litigation matters. The decrease from

1999 to 2000 was principally attributable to a 1999 legal settlement of

$3,000 for the Portland, Oregon SimExpress trial. See “Part I – Item 3.

Legal Proceedings” for further discussion on the Company’s current

legal proceedings. Interest income was $11,954, $10,421 and $7,152 in

2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively. Interest expense was $2,023, $2,034

and $993 in 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively. Foreign currency gain

was $689 in 2001 compared to a gain of $450 in 2000 and a loss of

$1,651 in 1999 due to fluctuations in currency rates. In addition, other

income (expense) was favorably impacted in 2000 by a gain on the sale

of a parcel of land adjacent to the Company’s headquarters of $3,118.

PROVISION FOR INCOME TAXES
The provision for income taxes was $7,767, $15,509 and $635 in 2001,

2000 and 1999, respectively. The net tax provision in all periods is the

result of the mix of profits earned by the Company and its subsidiaries

in tax jurisdictions with a broad range of income tax rates. The provis-

ion for income taxes differs from tax computed at the federal statutory

income tax rate due to the impact of nondeductible charges mostly

related to acquisitions offset by the realized benefit of net operating loss

carryforwards, foreign tax credits and earnings permanently reinvested

in foreign operations.
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The Company provides for U.S. income taxes on the earnings of foreign

subsidiaries unless they are considered permanently invested outside of

the U.S. At December 31, 2001 the cumulative amount of earnings

upon which U.S. income taxes have not been provided are approxi-

mately $221,623. Upon repatriation, some of these earnings would

generate foreign tax credits which may reduce the Federal tax liability

associated with any future foreign dividend.

As of December 31, 2001, the Company, for federal income tax pur-

poses, had net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $6,022,

foreign tax credits of $17,112, alternative minimum tax credit of $1,977

and research and experimentation credit carryforwards of $15,757. As

of December 31, 2001, the Company, for state income tax purposes,

had net operating loss carryforwards totaling $87,431 from multiple

jurisdictions, research and experimentation credits of $5,004 and child

care and facility credits of $1,258. If not used by the Company to

reduce income taxes payable in future periods, net operating loss

carryforwards will expire between 2002 and 2011, the foreign tax

credits will expire in 2005 and 2006 and research and experimentation

credit carryforwards between 2002 through 2013.

Under SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes,” deferred tax

assets and liabilities are determined based on differences between

financial reporting and tax bases of assets and liabilities and are

measured using the enacted tax rates and laws that will be in effect

when the differences are expected to reverse. SFAS No. 109 provides

for the recognition of deferred tax assets if realization of such assets is

more likely than not. Based on the weight of available evidence, the

Company has provided a valuation allowance against certain foreign tax

credit carryforwards, net operating loss carryforwards and the future

amortization of certain assets. The Company will continue to evaluate

the realizability of the deferred tax assets on a quarterly basis.

EFFECTS OF FOREIGN CURRENCY FLUCTUATIONS
Approximately half of the Company’s revenues are generated outside of

the U.S. For 2001, 2000 and 1999, approximately half of European and

all Japanese revenues were subject to exchange rate fluctuations as they

were booked in local currencies. The effects of these fluctuations were

substantially offset by local currency cost of revenues and operating

expenses, which resulted in an immaterial net effect on the Company’s

results of operations.

Foreign currency translation adjustment, a component of accumulated

other comprehensive income reported in the stockholders’ equity

section of the consolidated balance sheets, decreased to $10,736 at

December 31, 2001 from $14,219 at December 31, 2000. This reflects

the decrease in the value of net assets denominated in foreign cur-

rencies since year-end 2000 as a result of a stronger U.S. dollar at the

close of 2001 versus 2000.

NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS
In June 2001, the FASB issued SFAS Nos. 141 and 142, “Business

Combinations” and “Goodwill and Other Intangibles.” Under SFAS No.

141, business combinations initiated after June 30, 2001 must use the

purchase method of accounting. The pooling of interest method of

accounting is prohibited. Under SFAS No. 142, intangible assets

acquired in a business combination must be recorded separately from

goodwill if they arise from contractual or other legal rights or are

separable from the acquired entity and can be sold, transferred, licensed,

rented or exchanged, regardless of acquirer’s intent to do so. Other

intangible assets will continue to be amortized over their estimated

lives. Goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives are not

amortized but are tested for impairment annually and whenever there is

an impairment indicator using a fair value approach. All acquired

goodwill must be assigned to reporting units for purposes of

impairment testing and segment reporting. In-process research and

development will continue to be written off immediately. Effective

January 1, 2002, existing goodwill of $7,287 will no longer be subject

to amortization. The Company does not believe that the adoption of

SFAS No. 142 will have a material impact on the Company’s consoli-

dated financial statements.

In June and August 2001, the FASB issued SFAS Nos. 143 and 144,

“Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations” and “Accounting for the

Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets.” Under SFAS No. 143,

the fair value of a liability for an asset retirement obligation must be

recognized in the period in which it is incurred if a reasonable estimate

of fair value can be made. The associated asset retirement costs are

capitalized as part of the carrying amount of the long-lived asset. SFAS

No. 144 retains SFAS No. 121’s, “Accounting for the Impairment of

Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to Be Disposed Of,”

fundamental provisions for the: 1) recognition and measurement of

impairment of long-lived assets to be held and used; and 2) measure-

ment of long-lived assets to be disposed of by sale. The Company does

not believe that SFAS Nos. 143 and 144 will have a material impact on

its financial position or results of operations.
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
Year Ended December 31, 2001 2000

Current assets $ 325,424 $ 337,142
Cash and investments, short-term $ 147,176 $ 141,872
Cash provided by operations $ 51,567 $ 88,836
Cash used by investing activities, 
excluding short-term investments $ (23,973) $ (57,364)

Cash used by financing activities $ (22,338) $ (22,468)

CASH AND INVESTMENTS
Cash provided by operations was $51,567, a decrease of $37,269 from

2000. Cash provided by operations in 2001 was positively impacted by

net income of $31,104, depreciation and amortization of $28,494, non-

cash asset write-downs of $35,922 and a decrease in trade accounts

receivable of $15,576. Cash provided by operations was negatively

impacted by an increase in long-term term receivables of $25,802 and 

a decrease in accounts payable and accrued liabilities of $23,274. Cash

provided by operations in 2000 was positively impacted by net income

of $54,987, depreciation and amortization of $25,178, non-cash asset

write-downs of $12,934 and an increase in deferred revenue of $20,592,

offset by an increase in trade accounts receivable of $34,321.

Cash used for investing activities included capital expenditures of

$18,690 and $19,019 in 2001 and 2000, respectively. In 2001, there

were no purchases of businesses compared to $43,070 in 2000. In 2000,

investing cash flows were positively impacted by cash received from the

sale of property, plant and equipment of $4,725. Cash used by financ-

ing activities included the repurchase of common stock of $39,658 and

$52,488 in 2001 and 2000, respectively. These financing outflows were

offset by proceeds from issuance of common stock upon exercise of

stock options and employee stock plan purchases of $20,320 and

$30,020 in 2001 and 2000, respectively.

TRADE ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
Trade accounts receivable decreased to $139,391 at December 31, 2001

from $156,269 at December 31, 2000. Excluding the current portion of

term receivables of $62,749 and $60,207, average days sales outstand-

ing were 42 days and 48 days at December 31, 2001 and 2000, respect-

ively. Average days sales outstanding in total accounts receivable

decreased from 77 days at the end of 2000 to 76 days at the end of

2001. The Company sold no short-term accounts receivable in the

fourth quarter of 2001 compared to $10,317 short-term accounts

receivable sold to a financing institution on a non-recourse basis in the

fourth quarter of 2000.

PREPAID EXPENSES AND OTHER
Prepaid expenses and other decreased $2,160 from December 31, 2000

to December 31, 2001. This decrease was primarily attributable to a

decrease in prepaid commissions as a result of lower backlog.

TERM RECEIVABLES, LONG-TERM
Term receivables, long-term increased to $58,922 at December 31,

2001 compared to $33,528 at December 31, 2000. The balances were

attributable to multi-year, multi-element term license sales agreements

principally from the Company’s top-rated credit customers. Balances

under term agreements that are due within one year are included in

trade accounts receivable and balances that are due in more than one

year are included in term receivables, long-term. The Company uses

term agreements as a standard business practice and has a history of

successfully collecting under the original payment terms without

making concessions on payments, products or services. The increase

was primarily attributable to renewals of existing contracts that expired

in the current year and ongoing demand for agreements of this nature.

DEFERRED REVENUE
Deferred revenue consists primarily of prepaid annual software sup-

port contracts. Deferred revenue decreased $11,636 from December

31, 2000 to December 31, 2001 due to timing of cash receipts and

customer renewals.

CAPITAL RESOURCES
Expenditures for property and equipment decreased to $18,690 for

2001 compared to $19,019 for 2000. Expenditures in 2001 and 2000

did not include any individually significant projects. In 2001, the

Company did not complete any business acquisitions. In 2000, the

Company completed five business acquisitions, which resulted in cash

payments of $43,070. The Company anticipates that current cash

balances, anticipated cash flows from operating activities and existing

credit facilities will be sufficient to meet its working capital needs for at

least the next twelve months.

OUTLOOK FOR 2002
Revenues for the year 2002 are expected in the range of $650,000.

Gross margin should be close to 82% for the year. Operating expenses,

exclusive of special charges, merger and acquisition related charges and

goodwill amortization, are estimated to increase 7% over 2001 levels.

Other income and expense is expected to breakeven for the year. The

tax rate should remain steady at 20% throughout the year.

FACTORS THAT MAY AFFECT FUTURE RESULTS 
AND FINANCIAL CONDITION
The statements contained under “Outlook for 2002” above and other

statements contained in this report that are not statements of historical

fact, including without limitation, statements containing the words

“believes,” “expects,” “projections” and words of similar import,

constitute forward-looking statements that involve a number of risks

and uncertainties that are difficult to predict. Moreover, from time to

time, the Company may issue other forward-looking statements.
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Forward-looking statements regarding financial performance in future

periods, including the statements above under “Outlook for 2002”, do

not reflect potential impacts of mergers or acquisitions or other signifi-

cant transactions or events that have not been announced (or in the case

of the proposed acquisition of IKOS, closed) as of the time the state-

ments are made. Actual outcomes and results may differ materially

from what is expressed or forecast in forward-looking statements. 

The Company disclaims any obligation to update forward-looking state-

ments to reflect future events or revised expectations. The following

discussion highlights factors that could cause actual results to differ

materially from the results expressed or implied by the Company’s

forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements should be

considered in light of these factors.

The Company’s business is linked to the health of the U.S. and inter-

national economies. The growth of the U.S. economy has significantly

slowed, and some analysts believe the U.S. economy is currently

experiencing a recession. Weakness of the U.S. and international

economies may continue to have an adverse effect on the timing and

receipt of orders and revenue.

The Company’s business is largely dependent upon the success and

growth of the semiconductor, electronics and telecommunications

equipment industries. Significant reduction in capital spending in these

industries caused by worsening economic conditions may result in

decreased revenues and earnings. The Company’s revenues are depend-

ent on the level of technology capital spending, which include expen-

ditures for EDA software and other consulting services, in the U.S. 

and international economies. A number of telecommunications

companies have recently filed for bankruptcy protection, and others

have announced significant reductions and deferrals in capital spending.

If capital spending continues to decline in these industries over an

extended period of time, business will continue to be adversely affected.

In addition, demand for the Company’s products and services may be

affected by mergers and company restructurings in the electronics

industry worldwide which could result in decreased or delayed capital

spending patterns. The above business challenges for the electronics

and related industries may have a material adverse effect on the Com-

pany’s financial condition and results of operations.

The Company competes in the highly competitive and dynamic EDA

industry. The Company’s success is dependent upon its ability to

acquire or develop and market products and selling models that are

innovative, cost-competitive and meet customer expectations.

Competition in the EDA industry is intense, which can create adverse

effects including, but not limited to, price reductions, longer selling

cycles, lower product margins, loss of market share and additional

working capital requirements. Additionally, newer pricing and selling

models in the industry, including the use of fixed term licenses and

subscription transactions versus traditional perpetual licenses further

complicate the Company’s ability to effectively price and package large

multi-element contracts that are competitive and profitable.

A material amount of the Company’s software product revenue is usu-

ally the result of current quarter order performance of which a substan-

tial amount is usually booked in the last few weeks of each quarter. In

addition, the Company’s revenue often includes multi-million dollar

contracts. The timing of the completion of these contracts and the terms

of delivery of software, hardware and other services can have a material

impact on revenue recognition for a given year. The combination of

these factors impairs and delays the Company’s ability to identify

shortfalls or overages from revenue projections.

The Company’s revenue is affected by the mix of licenses entered into

in connection with the sale of software products. The Company’s soft-

ware licenses fall into three categories: perpetual, fixed-term, and sub-

scription. With perpetual and fixed-term licenses, software product

revenue is recognized at the beginning of the license period, while 

with subscription licenses, software product revenue is recognized

ratably over the license period. Accordingly, a shift in the license mix

toward increased subscription licenses would result in increased

deferral of software product revenue to future periods and would

decrease current revenue possibly resulting in the Company not 

meeting revenue projections.

The accounting rules governing software revenue recognition have been

subject to authoritative interpretations that have generally made it more

difficult to recognize software product revenue up front, focusing on

contractual terms that distinguish fixed-term licenses from subscription

licenses. The Company’s ability to meet revenue projections could be

adversely affected by new and revised standards and interpretations of

accounting rules governing revenue recognition.

The Company generally realizes approximately half of its revenues 

outside the U.S. and expects this to continue in the future. As such, the

effects of foreign currency fluctuations can impact the Company’s 

business and operating results. To hedge the impact of foreign currency

fluctuations, the Company enters into foreign currency forward and

option contracts. However, significant changes in exchange rates may

have a material adverse impact on the Company’s results of operations.

International operations subject the Company to other risks including,

but not limited to, longer receivables collection periods, economic or

political instability, government trade restrictions, limitations on repat-

riation of earnings, licensing and intellectual property rights protection.
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The Company’s Meta Division is in the hardware development and

assembly business. Risk factors include procuring hardware compon-

ents on a timely basis from a limited number of suppliers, assembling

and shipping systems on a timely basis with appropriate quality control,

developing distribution and shipment processes, managing inventory

and related obsolescence issues, and developing processes to deliver

customer support for hardware. On occasion, the Company will commit

to purchase component parts from their suppliers based on sales fore-

casts of Meta products. If the Company cannot change or be released

from these non-cancelable purchase commitments, significant costs

related to the purchase of unusable components could be incurred.

Additionally, a delay in production of the components or inaccurately

predicting orders in advance of actual customer orders could adversely

affect the Company’s results of operations.

The Company is engaged in litigation with Quickturn, a subsidiary of

Cadence Design Systems, Inc., in which Quickturn has asserted that 

the Company and Meta are infringing Quickturn patents. See “Part I –

Item 3. Legal Proceedings” for further discussion. The Company has

been prohibited from using, selling or marketing its first generation

SimExpress emulation products in the U.S. While the Company settled

one SimExpress court case in the second quarter of 1999, other legal

proceedings and litigation continue. These actions could adversely effect

the Company’s ability to sell its accelerated verification products in other

jurisdictions worldwide and may negatively affect demand for acceler-

ated verification products for the Company worldwide until the outcome

is determined. This litigation could result in lower sales of accelerated

verification products, increase the risk of inventory obsolescence and

have a materially adverse effect on the Company’s results of operations.

The Company’s gross margin may vary as a result of mix of products

and services sold. The gross margin on software products is greater than

that for hardware products, software support and professional services.

Additionally, the margin on software products will vary year to year

depending on the amount of third party royalties due for the mix of

products sold. Achievement of projected gross margins is also depend-

ent on revenue volume performance since the Company’s cost of

revenues includes certain fixed or relatively fixed costs such as profes-

sional service employee costs and purchased technology amortization.

The Company uses term installment sales agreements as a standard

business practice and has a history of successfully collecting under the

original payment terms without making concessions on payments,

products or services. These multi-year, multi-element term license

agreements are from the Company’s top-rated credit customers and are

typically three years in length. These agreements may increase the ele-

ment of risk associated with collectibility from customers that can arise

for a variety of reasons including ability to pay, product satisfaction or

disagreements and disputes. If collectibility for any of these multi-

million dollar agreements becomes a problem, the Company’s results of

operations could be adversely affected.

The Company’s operating expenses are generally committed in advance

of revenue and are based to a large degree on future revenue expectat-

ions. Operating expenses are incurred to generate and sustain higher

future revenue levels. If the revenue does not materialize as expected,

the Company’s results of operations can be adversely impacted.

Acquisitions of complementary businesses are a part of the Company’s

overall business strategy. These businesses may not perform as project-

ed which could result in impairment of acquisition related intangible

assets. Additional challenges include integration of sales channels,

training and education of the sales force for new product offerings,

integration of product development efforts, retention of key employees,

integration of systems of internal controls and integration of informa-

tion systems. Accordingly, in any acquisition there will be uncertainty

as to the achievement and timing of projected synergies, cost savings

and sales levels for acquired products. All of these factors can impair

the Company’s ability to forecast, to meet revenue and earnings targets

and to effectively manage the business for long-term growth. There can

be no assurance that these challenges will be effectively met.

The Company has been able to recruit and retain necessary personnel to

research and develop, market, sell and service products that satisfy

customers’ needs. There can be no assurance that the Company can

continue to recruit and retain such personnel. In particular, certain

qualified technology personnel are in demand and competition to

recruit and retain them is strong.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States require

management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported

amounts of assets, liabilities and contingencies at the date of the finan-

cial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses

during the reporting periods. Actual results could differ from those

estimates. In addition, new or revised accounting standards and inter-

pretations of standards are issued from time to time which could have a

material impact on the reported financial results.

Forecasts of the Company’s income tax position and resultant effective

tax rate are complex and subject to uncertainty as the Company’s

income tax position for each year combines the effects of available tax

benefits in certain countries where the Company does business and

benefits from available net operating loss carryforwards. In order to

forecast the Company’s global tax rate, pre-tax profits and losses by

jurisdiction are estimated and tax expense by jurisdiction is calculated.

If the mix of profits and losses or effective tax rates by jurisdiction are

different than those estimates, the Company’s actual tax rate could be

materially different than forecast.
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On January 1, 1999, 11 member countries of the European Union

established fixed conversion rates between their existing currencies and

the European Union’s common currency (Euro). The transition period

for the introduction of the Euro for the participating countries was

January 1, 1999 through January 1, 2002, and by March 1, 2002, all

national currencies for the participating countries will be replaced by

the Euro. The Company conducts business in many of these countries

and has evaluated Euro-related issues including pricing/marketing

strategy, conversion of information technology systems and existing

contracts. The Euro conversion may affect cross-border competition by

creating cross-border price transparency. The Company will continue to

evaluate issues involving introduction of the Euro. There can be no

assurance that the Euro conversion will not have a material adverse

impact on the Company’s consolidated results of operations.

The Company is involved in various administrative matters and litiga-

tion. There can be no assurance that they will not have a material

adverse impact on the Company’s consolidated financial position or

results of operations. In particular, as patents have become increasingly

significant in the EDA industry, the Company is exposed to increased

risk of involvement in very costly and time consuming patent infringe-

ment litigation, either as plaintiff or defendant. For example, see “Part 

I – Item 3. Legal Proceedings”. The pending litigation and any future

litigation may result in injunctions against future product sales,

substantial unanticipated legal costs and divert the efforts of

management personnel.

The Company’s stock price, like that of other technology companies,

can be volatile. For example, the stock price can be affected by many

factors such as quarterly increases or decreases in earnings, speculation

in the investment community about the Company’s financial condition

or results of operations and changes in revenue or earnings estimates,

announcements of new products, technological developments, alliances,

acquisitions or divestitures by the Company or its competitors. In

addition, general macro economic and market conditions unrelated to

performance may also affect the Company’s stock price.

Due to the factors above, as well as other market factors outside the

Company’s control, the Company’s future earnings and stock price may

be subject to significant volatility. Past financial performance should

not be considered a reliable indication of future performance. The

investment community should use caution in using historical trends to

estimate future results. In addition, if future results vary significantly

from expectations of analysts, the Company’s stock price could be

adversely impacted.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The Company’s discussion and analysis of its financial condition and

results of operations are based upon the Company’s Consolidated

Financial Statements, which have been prepared in accordance with

accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. The

preparation of these financial statements requires the Company to make

estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets,

liabilities and contingencies as of the date of the financial statements

and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting

periods. The Company evaluates its estimates on an on-going basis. The

Company bases its estimates on historical experience and on various

other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the circum-

stances, the results of which form the basis for making judgments about

the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent

from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates under

different assumptions or conditions. The Company believes the follow-

ing critical accounting policies affect its more significant judgments

and estimates used in the preparation of its Consolidated Financial

Statements. The Company’s critical accounting policies are as follows:

The Company records product revenue from fixed term installment

sales agreements upon shipment. These installment sales agreements

are typically for three years. The Company uses term agreements as a

standard business practice and has a history of successfully collecting

under the original payment terms without making concessions on pay-

ments, products or services. The fixed term installment sales licenses

are with the Company’s top-rated customers. If customers fail to make

the contractual payments under the installment sales agreements, the

Company could have to recognize a bad debt charge. The Company

maintains allowances for doubtful accounts for estimated losses result-

ing from the inability of its customers to make required payments. If the

financial condition of the Company’s customers were to deteriorate,

resulting in an impairment of their ability to make payments, additional

allowances may be required, which would result in an additional selling

expense in the period such determination was made.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for deductible temporary differences,

net operating loss carryforwards and credit carryforwards if it is more

likely than not that the tax benefits will be realized. The Company has

considered future taxable income and ongoing prudent and feasible tax

planning strategies in assessing the need for the valuation allowance.

The Company has recorded a valuation allowance to reduce its deferred

tax assets to the amount that is more likely than not to be realized. In

the event the Company was to determine that it would be able to realize

its deferred tax assets in the future in excess of its net recorded amount,

an adjustment to the deferred tax asset would increase either income 

or contributed capital in the period such determination was made. 
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Also, if the Company was to determine that it would not be able to

realize all or part of its net deferred tax asset in the future, an adjust-

ment to the deferred tax asset would be charged to either expense or

contributed capital in the period such determination was made.

The Company reviews long-lived assets and the related intangible assets

for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate the

carrying amount of such assets may not be recoverable. Recoverability

of these assets is determined by comparing the forecasted undiscounted

net cash flows of the operation to which the assets relate, to the carrying

amount including associated intangible assets of such operation. If the

operation is determined to be unable to recover the carrying amount of

its assets, then intangible assets are written down first, followed by the

other long-lived assets of the operation, to fair value. Fair value is deter-

mined based on discounted cash flows or appraised values, depending

upon the nature of the assets. Fair value for goodwill is determined

based on undiscounted cash flows or appraised values. The Company

recognized impairment charges of $31,742, $1,344 and $2,384, for the

years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively. Had

different assumptions of undiscounted net cash flows been used to

determine the recoverability of the intangible assets, materially different

amounts of asset impairment could have been reported. In the event that

in the future, it is determined that the Company’s intangible assets have

been impaired, an adjustment would be made that would result in a

charge for the write-down, in the period that determination was made.

The Company recognized a restructuring charge of $10,514 during the

year ended December 31, 2001 related to excess leased facilities to

offset future rent, net of sublease income, of the abandoned office space

and a write-off of leasehold improvements on abandoned office space.

The Company worked with external real estate experts in each of the

markets where the properties are located to obtain assumptions used to

determine the best estimate of the accrual. However, if the real estate

markets worsen and the Company isn’t able to sublease the properties

as expected, additional adjustments to the accrual may be required,

which would result in additional restructuring costs in the period such

determination was made. Likewise, if the real estate market strengthens,

and the Company is able to sublease the properties earlier or at more

favorable rates than projected, adjustments to the accrual may be

required that would increase net income in the period such

determination was made.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures 
About Market Risk
All numerical references in thousands, except rate data

INTEREST RATE RISK
The Company’s exposure to market risk for changes in interest rates

relates primarily to its investment portfolio. The Company does not use

derivative financial instruments for speculative or trading purposes. The

Company places its investments in instruments that meet high credit

quality standards, as specified in the Company’s investment policy. The

policy also limits the amount of credit exposure to any one issuer and

type of instrument. The Company does not expect any material loss

with respect to its investment portfolio.

The table below presents the carrying value and related weighted-

average fixed interest rates for the Company’s investment portfolio. 

The carrying value approximates fair value at December 31, 2001. 

In accordance with the Company’s investment policy all investments

mature in twelve months or less.

In thousands, except interest rates Carrying Average Fixed
Principal (notional) amounts in U.S. dollars: Amount Interest Rate

Cash equivalents – fixed rate $   96,275 2.19%
Short-term investments – fixed rate 23,121 3.97%________ ______

Total fixed rate interest bearing instruments $ 119,396 2.54%________ ______________ ______

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK
The Company enters into foreign exchange options for highly antici-

pated sales transactions between its foreign subsidiaries. These instru-

ments provide the Company the right to sell foreign currencies to third

parties at future dates with fixed exchange rates. The Company cur-

rently has foreign currency options outstanding to sell Japanese yen

over the next year with contract values totaling approximately $47,606

at average contract exchange rates of approximately 127.61 JPY. The

difference between the recorded value and the fair value of the Com-

pany’s foreign exchange position related to these option contracts was

approximately zero at December 31, 2001.

The Company enters into foreign exchange forward contracts to protect

against currency exchange risk associated with expected future cash

flows and existing assets and liabilities. The Company’s practice is to

hedge a majority of its existing material foreign exchange transaction

exposures. These contracts generally have maturities that do not exceed

twelve months. The difference between the recorded value and the fair

value of the Company’s foreign exchange position related to these

forward contracts was approximately zero at December 31, 2001.
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The Company also enters into forward contracts to offset the translation

and economic exposure on a portion of the Company’s net investment

in its Japanese subsidiary. The Company entered into a contract to sell

735.7 million Japanese yen that will guarantee the Company $5,764 at

the contract expiration. Differences between the contracted currency

rate and the currency rate at each balance sheet date will impact foreign

currency translation adjustment which is a component of accumulated

comprehensive income in the stockholders’ equity section of the

condensed consolidated balance sheet. The result is a partial offset of

the effect of Japanese currency changes on stockholders’ equity during

the contract term. The difference between the recorded value and the

fair value of the Company’s foreign exchange position related to this

contract was approximately zero at December 31, 2001.

The Company does not anticipate non-performance by the counter-

parties to these contracts. Looking forward, the Company does not

expect any material adverse effect on its consolidated financial

position, results of operations, or cash flows resulting from the use 

of these instruments. There can be no assurance that these strategies

will be effective or that transaction losses can be minimized or

forecasted accurately.

The following table provides information about the Company’s foreign

exchange forward contracts at December 31, 2001. Due to the short-

term nature of these contracts, the contract rate approximates the

weighted-average contractual foreign currency exchange rate and the

amount in U.S. dollars approximates the fair value of the contract at

December 31, 2001. The following table presents short-term forward

contracts to sell and buy foreign currencies in U.S. dollars:

Average
Short-term forward contracts: Amount Contract Rate

Forward contracts:
Japanese yen $   61,844 $  123.78
Euro 21,409 1.12
Swedish krona 4,199 10.50
Swiss franc 4,194 1.63
British pound 2,629 0.69
Korea won 1,023 1,298.00
Other 1,290 –

While the Company actively manages its foreign currency risks on an

ongoing basis, there can be no assurance that the Company’s foreign

currency hedging activities will substantially offset the impact of

fluctuations in the currency exchange rates on its results of operations,

cash flows and financial position. On a net basis, foreign currency

fluctuations did not have a material impact on the Company’s results of

operations and financial position during the year ended December 31,

2001. The realized gain (loss) on these contracts as they matured was

not material to the Company’s consolidated financial position, results of

operations, or cash flows for the periods presented.
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

MENTOR GRAPHICS CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
In thousands, except per share data
Year ended December 31, 2001 2000 1999

Revenues:

System and software $   333,215 $   343,569 $   295,325

Service and support 267,156 246,266 215,809_________ _________ _________

Total revenues 600,371 589,835 511,134_________ _________ _________

Cost of revenues:

System and software 26,737 30,981 29,726

Service and support 87,936 87,707 88,328_________ _________ _________

Total cost of revenues 114,673 118,688 118,054_________ _________ _________

Gross margin 485,698 471,147 393,080_________ _________ _________

Operating expenses:

Research and development 137,799 125,952 116,867

Marketing and selling 198,639 197,733 172,386

General and administration 54,565 55,002 47,134

Amortization of goodwill 7,520 2,965 2,217

Special charges 48,974 2,611 25,821

Merger and acquisition related charges – 11,590 12,775_________ _________ _________

Total operating expenses 447,497 395,853 377,200_________ _________ _________

Operating income 38,201 75,294 15,880

Other income (expense), net 670 (4,798) (13,011)_________ _________ _________

Income before income taxes 38,871 70,496 2,869

Provision for income taxes 7,767 15,509 635_________ _________ _________

Net income $     31,104 $     54,987 $       2,234_________ _________ __________________ _________ _________

Net income per share:

Basic $         0.48 $         0.86 $         0.03_________ _________ __________________ _________ _________

Diluted $         0.46 $         0.81 $         0.03_________ _________ __________________ _________ _________

Weighted average number of shares outstanding:

Basic 64,436 64,125 65,629_________ _________ __________________ _________ _________

Diluted 67,681 67,509 66,324_________ _________ __________________ _________ _________

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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MENTOR GRAPHICS CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
In thousands
As of December 31, 2001 2000

Assets

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $   124,029 $   109,112

Short-term investments 23,147 32,760

Trade accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful 

accounts of $3,273 in 2001 and $3,384 in 2000 139,391 156,269

Other receivables 4,853 4,774

Prepaid expenses and other 20,389 22,549

Deferred income taxes 13,615 11,678_________ _________

Total current assets 325,424 337,142

Property, plant and equipment, net 82,247 82,560

Term receivables, long-term 58,922 33,528

Intangible assets, net 11,884 56,593

Other assets, net 44,998 21,091_________ _________

Total assets $   523,475 $   530,914_________ __________________ _________

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable $      8,581 $     10,927

Income taxes payable 39,465 30,340

Accrued payroll and related liabilities 47,922 58,062

Accrued liabilities 24,752 36,568

Deferred revenue 56,914 68,550_________ _________

Total current liabilities 177,634 204,447

Notes payable 5,100 6,100

Other long-term liabilities 9,366 1,147_________ _________

Total liabilities 192,100 211,694_________ _________

Commitments and contingencies (Note 16)

Minority interest 2,913 2,683

Stockholders’ equity:

Common stock, no par value, authorized 100,000 shares; 64,706 and 

64,624 issued and outstanding for 2001 and 2000, respectively 245,672 267,010

Incentive stock, no par value, authorized 1,200 shares; none issued – –

Retained earnings 64,288 34,208

Accumulated other comprehensive income 18,502 15,319_________ _________

Total stockholders’ equity 328,462 316,537_________ _________

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $   523,475 $   530,914_________ __________________ _________

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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MENTOR GRAPHICS CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
In thousands
Year ended December 31, 2001 2000 1999

Operating Cash Flows:

Net income $     31,104 $     54,987 $      2,234

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash 

provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization of property, plant and equipment 17,724 19,447 21,717

Amortization of intangibles and other assets 10,770 5,731 3,740

Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment – (3,118) –

Deferred income taxes (12,670) 777 (5,143)

Changes in other long-term liabilities and minority interest 7,482 595 (7,128)

Write-down of assets 35,922 12,934 25,718

Business disposals – – 6,553

Gain on sale of investments (933) – (3,669)

Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of effect 

of acquired businesses:

Trade accounts receivable 15,576 (34,321) 18,493

Prepaid expenses and other (2,896) (3,796) 6,036

Term receivables, long-term (25,802) (2,777) (3,153)

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (23,274) 9,563 (14,908)

Income taxes payable 9,509 8,222 1,757

Deferred revenue (10,945) 20,592 9,104_________ _________ _________

Net cash provided by operating activities 51,567 88,836 61,351_________ _________ _________

Investing Cash Flows:

Proceeds from sales and maturities of short-term investments 76,191 47,286 25,076

Purchases of short-term investments (64,450) (41,397) (43,553)

Purchases of property, plant and equipment (18,690) (19,019) (15,565)

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment – 4,725 3,009

Acquisitions of businesses and equity interests – (43,070) (18,579)

Proceeds from sale of investments 933 – 8,191

Purchases of IKOS stock (6,216) – –_________ _________ _________

Net cash used in investing activities (12,232) (51,475) (41,421)_________ _________ _________

Financing Cash Flows:

Proceeds from issuance of common stock 20,320 30,020 14,197

Repayments of short-term borrowings – – (24,000)

Repayment of notes payable (1,000) – –

Repurchase of common stock (39,658) (52,488) (33,553)

Repurchase of warrant (2,000) – –_________ _________ _________

Net cash used in financing activities (22,338) (22,468) (43,356)_________ _________ _________

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (2,080) (1,418) 551_________ _________ _________

Net change in cash and cash equivalents 14,917 13,475 (22,875)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 109,112 95,637 118,512_________ _________ _________

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year $   124,029 $   109,112 $     95,637_________ _________ __________________ _________ _________

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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MENTOR GRAPHICS CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Accumulated
Retained Other Total

Common Stock Earnings Comprehensive Comprehensive Stockholders’
In thousands Shares Amount (Deficit) Income Income Equity

Balance at December 31, 1998 65,739 $   303,352 $   (22,246) $     14,176 $  295,282
Net income – – 2,234 – 2,234 2,234

Foreign currency translation adjustment, 
before tax expense of $1,548 – – – 5,488 5,488 5,488_________

Comprehensive income – – – – $       7,722 –__________________
Stock issued under stock option and stock 
purchase plans 2,127 13,329 – – 13,329

Tax benefit associated with exercise of stock options – 868 – – – 868
Stock options and a warrant issued for 
acquisition of business – 5,482 – – 5,482

Repurchase of common stock (3,528) (33,553) – – (33,553)
Dividends to minority owners – – (350) – (350)_______ _________ _________ _________ _________
Balance at December 31, 1999 64,338 289,478 (20,362) 19,664 288,780
Net income – – 54,987 – 54,987 54,987

Foreign currency translation adjustment,
before tax benefit of $1,536 – – – (5,445) (5,445) (5,445)

Unrealized gain on investments reported at 
fair value, before tax expense of $440 – – – 1,100 1,100 1,100_________

Comprehensive income – – – – $     50,642 –__________________
Stock issued under stock option and stock 
purchase plans 3,265 28,866 – – 28,866

Tax benefit associated with exercise of stock options – 1,154 – – 1,154
Repurchase of common stock (2,979) (52,488) – – (52,488)
Dividends to minority owners – – (417) – (417)_______ _________ _________ _________ _________
Balance at December 31, 2000 64,624 267,010 34,208 15,319 316,537
Net income – – 31,104 – 31,104 31,104

Foreign currency translation adjustment, 
before tax benefit of $697 – – – (3,483) (3,483) (3,483)

Unrealized gain on investments, net of tax 
liability of $1,503 – – – 4,372 4,372 4,372

Reclassification adjustment for investment 
gains included in net income – – – (933) (933) (933)

Unrealized gain on derivatives – – – 3,227 3,227 3,227_________
Comprehensive income – – – – $     34,287 –__________________
Stock issued under stock option and stock 
purchase plans 1,703 18,623 – – 18,623

Tax benefit associated with exercise of stock options – 1,697 – – 1,697
Repurchase of common stock (1,621) (39,658) – – (39,658)
Repurchase of warrant – (2,000) – – (2,000)
Dividends to minority owners – – (1,024) – (1,024)_______ _________ _________ _________ _________
Balance at December 31, 2001 64,706 $   245,672 $     64,288 $     18,502 $   328,462_______ _________ _________ _________ ________________ _________ _________ _________ _________

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
All numerical references in thousands, except percentages and per share data

1 NATURE OF OPERATIONS
The Company is a supplier of EDA systems — advanced computer

software, accelerated verification systems and intellectual property

designs and databases used to automate the design, analysis and testing

of electronic hardware and embedded systems software in electronic

systems and components. The Company markets its products and

services worldwide, primarily to large customers in the communica-

tions, computer, semiconductor, consumer electronics, aerospace,

networking, multimedia and transportation industries. The Company

sells and licenses its products through its direct sales force in North

America, Europe, Japan and Pacific Rim, and an affiliated channel of

distributors and sales representatives where a direct sales presence is

not warranted or cost effective. In addition to its corporate offices in

Wilsonville, Oregon, the Company has sales, support, software

development and professional service offices worldwide.

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements

of the Company and its wholly owned and majority-owned subsidiaries.

All significant intercompany accounts and transactions are eliminated

in consolidation.

Foreign Currency Translation

Local currencies are the functional currencies for the Company’s

foreign subsidiaries except for Ireland and Singapore where the U.S.

dollar is used as the functional currency. Assets and liabilities of foreign

operations, excluding Ireland and Singapore, are translated to U.S.

dollars at current rates of exchange, and revenues and expenses are

translated using weighted average rates. Gains and losses from foreign

currency translation are included as a separate component of stock-

holders’ equity. Foreign currency transaction gains and losses are

included as a component of other income and expense.

Financial Instruments

The Company places its cash equivalents and short-term investments

with major banks and financial institutions. The Company’s investment

policy limits its credit exposure to any one financial institution. Con-

centrations of credit risk with respect to trade receivables are limited

due to the large number of customers comprising the Company’s cus-

tomer base, and their dispersion across different businesses and geo-

graphic areas. The carrying amounts of cash equivalents, short-term

investments, trade receivables, accounts payable, accrued liabilities and

notes payable approximate fair value because of the short-term nature

of these instruments. The Company does not believe it is exposed to any

significant credit risk or market risk on its financial instruments.

The Company enters into forward foreign exchange contracts as a hedge

against foreign currency sales commitments and intercompany balances.

In addition, the Company purchases foreign exchange options which

permit but do not require foreign currency exchanges at a future date

with another party at a contracted exchange price. Remeasurement gains

and losses on forward and option contracts are deferred and recognized

when the sale occurs. All subsequent remeasurement gains and losses

are recognized as they occur to offset remeasurement gains and losses

recognized on the related foreign currency accounts receivable balances.

The Company had forward contracts and options outstanding of

$149,959 and $134,687 at December 31, 2001 and December 31, 2000,

respectively. These contracts generally have maturities which do not

exceed twelve months. The difference between the recorded value and

the fair value of the Company’s foreign exchange position related to

these contracts was approximately zero at December 31, 2001 and

December 31, 2000. The fair value of these contracts was calculated

based on dealer quotes. The Company does not anticipate non-

performance by the counterparties to these contracts.

Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Short-Term Investments

The Company classifies highly liquid investments purchased with an

original maturity of three months or less as cash equivalents. Short-term

investments consist of certificates of deposit, commercial paper, other

highly liquid investments with original maturities in excess of three

months and less than one year and equity securities. The Company

determines the appropriate classification of its investments at the time

of purchase. Debt securities are classified as held to maturity when the

Company has the positive intent and ability to hold the securities to

maturity. Held to maturity securities are stated at cost, adjusted for

amortization of premiums and discounts to maturity. Marketable

securities not classified as held to maturity are classified as available

for sale. Available for sale securities are carried at fair value based on

quoted market prices. Unrealized gains and losses are reported, net of

tax, in stockholders’ equity as a component of accumulated other

comprehensive income.
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Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost. Expenditures for additions

to property, plant and equipment are capitalized. The cost of repairs and

maintenance is expensed as incurred. Depreciation of buildings and land

improvements, is computed on a straight-line basis over lives of forty

and twenty years, respectively. Depreciation of computer equipment and

furniture is computed principally on a straight-line basis over the estim-

ated useful lives of the assets, generally three to five years. Leasehold

improvements are amortized on a straight-line basis over the lesser of

the term of the lease or estimated useful lives of the improvements.

In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS)

No. 121, “Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for

Long-Lived Assets to Be Disposed Of ”, the Company reviews long-

lived assets and the related intangible assets for impairment whenever

events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying amount of

such assets may not be recoverable. Recoverability of these assets is

determined by comparing the forecasted undiscounted net cash flows of

the operation to which the assets relate, to the carrying amount includ-

ing associated intangible assets of such operation. If the operation is

determined to be unable to recover the carrying amount of its assets,

then intangible assets are written down first, followed by the other long-

lived assets of the operation, to fair value. Fair value is determined

based on discounted cash flows or appraised values, depending upon

the nature of the assets. Fair value for goodwill is determined based on

undiscounted cash flows or appraised values.

Income Taxes

The Company uses the asset and liability method of accounting for in-

come taxes. Under the asset and liability method, deferred income taxes

are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to temporary

differences between the financial statement carrying amounts and tax

balances of existing assets and liabilities. Deferred tax assets and liabil-

ities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable

income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected

to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred taxes of a change in

tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the enact-

ment date. Deferred tax assets are recognized for deductible temporary

differences, net operating loss carryforwards and credit carryforwards 

if it is more likely than not that the tax benefits will be realized. For

deferred tax assets that cannot be recognized under the more likely than

not test, the Company has established a valuation allowance. In the

event the Company was to determine that it would be able to realize its

deferred tax assets in the future in excess of its net recorded amount,

an adjustment to the deferred tax asset would increase either income 

or contributed capital in the period such determination was made.

Also, if the Company was to determine that it would not be able to

realize all or part of its net deferred tax asset in the future, an adjust-

ment to the deferred tax asset would be charged to either income or

contributed capital in the period such determination was made.

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue in accordance with Statement of

Position (SOP) 97-2, “Software Revenue Recognition”, as amended by

SOP 98-9, “Modification of SOP 97-2, Software Revenue Recognition,

With Respect to Certain Transactions”. Revenue from license arrange-

ments are recognized upon contract execution and start of license term,

provided all delivery obligations have been met, fees are fixed or deter-

minable and collection is probable. The Company uses the residual

method to recognize revenue when a license agreement includes one or

more elements to be delivered at a future date if evidence of the fair

value of all undelivered elements exists. If an undelivered element of

the arrangement exists under the license arrangement, revenue is

deferred based on vendor-specific objective evidence of the fair value

of the undelivered element. If vendor-specific objective evidence of fair

value does not exist for all undelivered elements, all revenue is deferred

until sufficient evidence exists or all elements have been delivered.

Product revenue from term installment sales agreements which include

fixed term licenses are with the Company’s top-rated customers and are

recognized upon shipment while any maintenance revenues included in

these arrangements are deferred and recognized ratably over the con-

tract term. The Company uses term agreements as a standard business

practice and has a history of successfully collecting under the original

payment terms without making concessions on payments, products or

services. Revenue from subscription-type term license agreements,

which typically include software, rights to future software products and

services is deferred and recognized ratably over the term of the

subscription period. Revenue from annual maintenance and support

arrangements is deferred and recognized ratably over the term of the

contract. Revenue from consulting and training is recognized when the

services are performed.

Transfer of Financial Assets

The Company finances certain software license and service agreements

with customers through the sale, assignment and transfer of the future

payments under those agreements to financing institutions on a non-

recourse basis. The Company records such transfers as sales of the

related accounts receivable when it is considered to have surrendered

control of such receivables under the provisions of SFAS No. 140,

“Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and

Extinguishments of Liabilities.”
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Software Development Costs

The Company accounts for software development costs in accordance

with SFAS No. 86, “Accounting for the Costs of Computer Software to

be Sold, Leased or Otherwise Marketed.” Software development costs

are capitalized beginning when a product’s technological feasibility has

been established by completion of a working model of the product and

ending when a product is available for general release to customers.

Completion of a working model of the Company’s products and general

release have substantially coincided. As a result, the Company has not

capitalized any software development costs during these periods since

the amounts have not been material.

Advertising Costs

The Company expenses all advertising costs as incurred.

Goodwill and Intangibles

Goodwill represents the excess of the aggregate purchase price over the

fair value of the tangible and intangible assets acquired from the Com-

pany’s various acquisitions. Purchased technology and goodwill costs

are being amortized over a three to five year period to system and

software cost of revenues and operating expenses, respectively. Under

SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangibles”, amortization of

goodwill will no longer occur.

The Company recognized impairment in value of certain goodwill and

purchased technology, which resulted in associated write-downs of

$23,665 and $8,077 in 2001, $522 and $822 in 2000 and $2,384 and $0

in 1999, respectively. Total goodwill and purchased technology amorti-

zation expenses were $10,770, $5,731, and $3,740 for years ended

December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.

Use of Estimates

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States require

management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported

amount of assets, liabilities and contingencies at the date of the finan-

cial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses

during the reporting periods. Actual results could differ from those

estimates.

Reclassifications and Restatements

Certain reclassifications have been made in the accompanying consoli-

dated financial statements for 1999 and 2000 to conform with the 2001

presentation.

New Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued

SFAS Nos. 141 and 142, “Business Combinations” and “Goodwill and

Other Intangibles.” Under SFAS No. 141, business combinations

initiated after June 30, 2001 must use the purchase method of

accounting. The pooling of interest method of accounting is prohibited.

Under SFAS No. 142, intangible assets acquired in a business

combination must be recorded separately from goodwill if they arise

from contractual or other legal rights or are separable from the acquired

entity and can be sold, transferred, licensed, rented or exchanged,

regardless of acquirer’s intent to do so. Other intangible assets will

continue to be amortized over their estimated lives. Goodwill and

intangible assets with indefinite lives are not amortized but are tested

for impairment annually and whenever there is an impairment indicator

using a fair value approach. All acquired goodwill must be assigned to

reporting units for purposes of impairment testing and segment

reporting. In-process research and development will continue to be

written off immediately. Effective January 1, 2002, existing goodwill of

$7,287 will no longer be subject to amortization. The Company does

not believe that the adoption of SFAS No. 142 will have a material

impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

In June and August 2001, the FASB issued SFAS Nos. 143 and 144,

“Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations” and “Accounting for the

Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets.” Under SFAS No. 143,

the fair value of a liability for an asset retirement obligation must be

recognized in the period in which it is incurred if a reasonable estimate

of fair value can be made. The associated asset retirement costs are

capitalized as part of the carrying amount of the long-lived asset. SFAS

No. 144 retains SFAS No. 121’s, “Accounting for the Impairment of

Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to Be Disposed Of,”

fundamental provisions for the: 1) recognition and measurement of

impairment of long-lived assets to be held and used; and 2) measure-

ment of long-lived assets to be disposed of by sale. The Company does

not believe that SFAS Nos. 143 and 144 will have a material impact on

its financial position or results of operations.
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3 MERGERS AND ACQUISITIONS
In 2000, the Company completed five business combinations which

were accounted for as purchases. The Company purchased Descon

Informationsysteme GmbH & Co. in May 2000, Escalade Corp. in May

2000, Harness in October 2000, Speedgate, Inc. in December 2000 and

Cadix in December 2000. The total purchase price including acquisition

expenses for all 2000 purchase acquisitions was $53,592. The excess of

liabilities assumed over tangible assets acquired totaled $1,393. The

purchase accounting allocations resulted in charges for in-process

research and development (R&D) of $11,590, goodwill capitalization of

$33,295, and technology capitalization of $10,100. The results of

operations are included in the Company’s consolidated financial

statements only from the date of acquisition forward.

In connection with these acquisitions, the Company recorded one-time

charges to operations for the write-off of in-process R&D. The value

assigned to in-process R&D related to research projects for which

technological feasibility had not been established. The value was

determined by estimating the net cash flows from the sale of products

resulting from the completion of such projects, and discounting the net

cash flows back to their present value. The Company then estimated the

stage of completion of the products at the date of the acquisition based

on R&D costs that had been expended as of the date of acquisition as

compared to total R&D costs at completion. The percentages derived

from this calculation were then applied to the net present value of future

cash flows to determine the in-process charge. The nature of the efforts

to develop the in-process technology into commercially viable products

principally related to the completion of all planning, designing, proto-

typing, verification and testing activities that are necessary to establish

that the product can be produced to meet its design specification, in-

cluding function, features and technical performance requirements. The

estimated net cash flows from these products were based on estimates

of related revenues, cost of sales, R&D costs, selling, general and

administrative costs and income taxes. The Company will monitor how

underlying assumptions compare to actual results.

4 SPECIAL CHARGES
Following is a summary of the major elements of the special charges:

Year ended December 31, 2001 2000 1999

Goodwill and purchased 
technology impairment $   31,742 $     1,344 $     2,384

Excess leased facility costs 10,514 – –
Employee severance 3,365 707 4,877
Business disposals – – 9,888
Terminated acquisitions – – 7,714
Other 3,353 560 958________ ________ ________

Total $   48,974 $     2,611 $   25,821________ ________ ________________ ________ ________

During 2001, the Company recorded special charges of $48,974. The

charges primarily consist of impairment in value of certain goodwill

and purchased technology, an accrual for excess leased facility costs

and costs incurred for employee terminations.

The goodwill and purchased technology impairment charge was due to

performance of recent acquisitions not meeting initial estimates. This

charge was determined by comparing the forecasted undiscounted net

cash flows of the operations to which the intangible assets relate, to the

carrying amount including associated intangible assets of such opera-

tion. The operations were determined to be unable to recover the carry-

ing amount of their assets, resulting in a write-down to fair value. There

have been no significant modifications to the amount of these charges.

Excess leased facility costs consist of non-cancelable lease payments

and write-off of leasehold improvements for leases of four facilities in

North America and Europe. These facilities were permanently aban-

doned and costs are net of sublease income. Non-cancelable lease

payments on excess leased facilities should be expended over 14 years,

with the majority to be expended over 5 years. There have been no

significant modifications to the amount of these charges.

The Company rebalanced the workforce by 79 employees in June and

December 2001. This reduction impacted several employee groups.

Employee severance costs included severance benefits, notice pay and

outplacement services. Termination benefits were communicated to the

affected employees prior to year-end. The majority of these costs were

expended in 2001 and the remaining amount should be expended in the

first half of 2002. There have been no significant modifications to the

amount of these charges.
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During 2000, the Company recorded special charges of $2,611. The

charges consist of impairment in value of certain goodwill and pur-

chased technology and costs for employee terminations due to the

acquisition of Escalade Corp. Substantially all of these costs were

expended in 2000 and the remaining amount was primarily expended in

the first half of 2001. There have been no significant modifications to

the amount of the charges.

During 1999, the Company recorded special charges of $25,821. The

charges included costs attributable to the terminated tender offer for

Quickturn Design Systems, Inc. (Quickturn) net of a gain from the sale

of acquired stock, the terminated acquisition negotiations for certain

assets and liabilities of an EDA software company, and two subsidiary

divestitures and related employee terminations. In addition the Com-

pany incurred costs for other employee terminations due in part to the

acquisition of VeriBest and recognized impairment in value of certain

goodwill. Substantially all of these costs were expended in 1999 and the

remaining amount was expended in the first half of 2000. There have

been no significant modifications to the amount of the charges.

5 DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES
On January 1, 2001, the Company adopted SFAS No. 133, “Accounting

for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities”. SFAS No. 133

establishes accounting and reporting standards for derivative instru-

ments and hedging activities. SFAS No. 133 requires that all derivatives

are recognized as either assets or liabilities on the balance sheet at fair

value and changes in fair value are recognized immediately in earnings,

unless the derivatives qualify as hedges of future cash flows. For deriv-

atives qualifying as hedges of future cash flows, the effective portion of

changes in fair value is recorded temporarily in equity, then recognized

in earnings along with the related effects of the hedged items. Any

ineffective portion of a hedge is reported in earnings as it occurs. The

Company had no transition adjustment upon adoption of SFAS No. 133.

The Company uses derivatives to partially offset its business exposure

to currency risk. Forward and option contracts are used to offset the

foreign exchange risk on certain existing assets and liabilities and to

hedge the foreign exchange risk of future cash flows on certain fore-

casted revenues. Typically, the Company hedges portions of its fore-

casted currency exposure associated with revenues over a time horizon

of one year.

In accordance with SFAS No. 133, hedges related to anticipated trans-

actions are designated and documented at hedge inception as cash flow

hedges and evaluated for effectiveness quarterly. The effective portions

of the net gains or losses on derivative instruments are reported as a

component of other comprehensive income in stockholders’ equity.

Other comprehensive income associated with hedges of foreign cur-

rency sales is reclassified into revenue in the same period as the related

sale is recognized. Any residual changes in fair value of the instru-

ments, including ineffectiveness and changes in fair value based on the

differential between the spot and forward exchange rates, are recog-

nized in current earnings in other income (expense).

The Company recognized a net loss of $913 in revenue from derivative

instruments designated as cash flow hedges of forecasted sales trans-

actions during the year ended December 31, 2001. As of December 31,

2001, the Company had a net unrealized gain associated with cash flow

hedges of $3,227 recorded in accumulated other comprehensive income

which is expected to be reclassified to earnings within the next year.

The following provides a summary of activity in other comprehensive

income related to derivatives held by the Company:

Year ended December 31, 2001

Changes in fair value of derivatives $     2,314
Loss reclassified from other comprehensive income 913________

Unrealized gain on derivatives $     3,227________________

The Company enters into forward contracts to offset the foreign

exchange gains and losses generated by the remeasurement of certain

recorded assets and liabilities in non-functional currencies. Changes in

the fair value of these derivatives are recognized in current earnings in

other income and expense as offsets to the changes in fair value of the

related assets and liabilities.

The Company entered into a forward contract to offset the translation

and economic exposure of a net investment position in its Japanese

subsidiary. The effective portion of the net gain or loss on the derivative

instrument is reported in the same manner as foreign currency trans-

lation adjustment. Any residual changes in the fair value of the forward

contract, including changes in fair value based on the differential

between the spot and forward exchange rates are recognized in current

earnings in other income (expense). For the year ended December 31,

2001, the Company recorded a net favorable adjustment of $892 in

accumulated translation adjustment for derivatives designated as net

investment hedges.
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6 INCOME TAXES
Domestic and foreign pre-tax income (loss) is as follows:

Year ended December 31, 2001 2000 1999

Domestic $    (8,170) $    (7,626) $    (3,235)
Foreign 47,041 78,122 6,104________ ________ ________

Total $   38,871 $   70,496 $     2,869________ ________ ________________ ________ ________

The provision (benefit) for income taxes is as follows:

Year ended December 31, 2001 2000 1999

Current:
Federal $   16,428 $     4,504 $     2,094
State 500 776 295
Foreign 3,509 9,751 3,389________ ________ ________
Total current 20,437 15,031 5,778________ ________ ________

Deferred:
Federal (7,172) 732 (5,622)
Foreign (5,498) (254) 479________ ________ ________
Total deferred (12,670) 478 (5,143)________ ________ ________
Total $     7,767 $   15,509 $        635________ ________ ________________ ________ ________

The effective tax rate differs from the federal tax rate as follows:

Year ended December 31, 2001 2000 1999

Federal tax $   13,604 $   24,675 $     1,004
State tax, net of federal benefit 325 498 192
Impact of international operations (9,151) (12,971) 1,647
Non-deductible acquisition costs 872 2,173 4,536
Other, net 2,117 1,134 (6,744)________ ________ ________

Provision for income taxes $     7,767 $   15,509 $        635________ ________ ________________ ________ ________

The significant components of the deferred income tax provision

(benefit) are as follows:

Year ended December 31, 2001 2000 1999

Net changes in deferred tax assets 
and liabilities $  (5,504) $ (9,530) $     (473)

Deferred tax assets reducing goodwill – 1,935 –
Tax effect of changes in market value 
of securities available for sale (1,503) – –

Increase (decrease) in beginning-of-year 
balance of the valuation allowance 
for deferred tax assets (5,663) 8,073 (4,670)________ ________ ________

Total $ (12,670) $        478 $   (5,143)________ ________ ________________ ________ ________

The tax effects of temporary differences and carryforwards which 

gave rise to significant portions of deferred tax assets and liabilities

were as follows:

As of December 31, 2001 2000

Deferred tax assets:
Depreciation of property and equipment $          23 $        163
Reserves and allowances 2,313 4,130
Accrued expenses not currently deductible 9,271 7,701
Net operating loss carryforwards 11,215 9,562
Tax credit carryforwards 41,107 47,361
Purchased technology & other intangibles 16,973 6,759
Other, net 3,970 3,692________ ________

Total gross deferred tax assets 84,872 79,368
Less valuation allowance (50,043) (55,706)________ ________
Net deferred tax asset $   34,829 $  23,662________ ________________ ________

Long-term deferred tax asset of $21,214 and $11,984 as of December

31, 2001 and 2000, respectively, is included in other assets.

The Company has established a valuation allowance for certain

deferred tax assets, including those for a portion of net operating loss

and tax credit carryforwards. Such a valuation allowance is recorded

when it is more likely than not that some portion of the deferred tax

assets will not be realized. The portion of the valuation allowance for

deferred tax assets for which subsequently recognized tax benefits 

will be applied directly to contributed capital is $29,198 as of

December 31, 2001. This amount is due to the uncertainty of U.S.

entities generating sufficient taxable income, including the deduction

for stock options, to realize certain domestic deferred tax assets which

are attributable to differences between financial and tax reporting of

employee stock option transactions.

As of December 31, 2001, the Company, for federal income tax pur-

poses, has net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $6,022,

foreign tax credits of $17,112, alternative minimum tax credit of $1,977

and research and experimentation credit carryforwards of $15,757. As

of December 31, 2001, the Company, for state income tax purposes, has

net operating loss carryforwards totaling $87,431 from multiple juris-

dictions, research and experimentation credits of $5,004 and child care

and facility credits of $1,258. If not used by the Company to reduce

income taxes payable in future periods, net operating loss carryforwards

will expire between 2002 through 2011, the foreign tax credits will

expire in 2005, and research and experimentation credit carryforwards

between 2002 through 2013.
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The Company provides for U.S. income taxes on the earnings of foreign

subsidiaries unless they are considered permanently invested outside of

the U.S. At December 31, 2001 the cumulative amount of earnings upon

which U.S. income taxes have not been provided are approximately

$221,623. Upon repatriation, some of these earnings would generate

foreign tax credits which may reduce the federal tax liability associated

with any future foreign dividend.

The Company has settled its federal income tax obligations through

1991. The Company believes the provisions for income taxes for years

since 1991 are adequate.

7 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
A summary of property, plant and equipment follows:

As of December 31, 2001 2000

Computer equipment and furniture $  130,527 $  134,501
Buildings and building equipment 50,156 50,156
Land and improvements 14,050 14,050
Leasehold improvements 19,333 18,209________ ________

214,066 216,916
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (131,819) (134,356)________ ________

Property, plant and equipment, net $   82,247 $   82,560________ ________________ ________

8 SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS
Short-term borrowings from time to time include drawings by sub-

sidiaries under multi-currency unsecured credit agreements. Interest

rates are generally based on the applicable country’s prime lending rate

depending on the currency borrowed. The Company has available lines

of credit of approximately $13,116 as of December 31, 2001. No

significant borrowings were outstanding under these agreements at

December 31, 2001 and 2000.

In January 2001, the Company renewed a committed revolving loan

with a bank that remains in effect until 2004, which gives the Company

the ability to borrow up to $100,000 and is available for general opera-

tional purposes. The revolving loan has a variable rate, which is cal-

culated based on the Company’s financial position and operating

performance and is subject to certain loan covenants. The Company

paid financing fees of $530 for this agreement, which will be amortized

over its life.

9 LONG-TERM NOTES PAYABLE
The Company has unsecured long-term notes payable of $5,100 and

$6,100 to the former shareholders of Harness Software Group at

December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively. The notes are due December

31, 2004 and bear interest at LIBOR (London Interbank Offering Rate)

less 1% which was 1.44% at December 31, 2001. Additionally, the

noteholders may request repayments of principal in advance of the

notes’ due date. Interest is payable quarterly.

10 NET INCOME PER SHARE
Basic net income per share is computed using the weighted-average

number of common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted net

income per share is computed using the weighted-average number of

common shares and potentially dilutive common equivalent shares

outstanding during the period. Potentially dilutive common equivalent

shares consist of the weighted-average number of employee stock

options and common stock warrants outstanding, computed using the

treasury stock method.

The following provides the computation of basic and diluted income

per share:

Year Ended December 31, 2001 2000 1999

Net Income $   31,104 $   54,987 $     2,234________ ________ ________________ ________ ________
Weighted average shares used to 
calculate basic income per share 64,436 64,125 65,629

Employee stock options and employee 
stock purchase plan 3,111 3,261 695

Warrants 134 123 –________ ________ ________
Weighted average common and 
potential common shares used to 
calculate diluted net income per share 67,681 67,509 66,324________ ________ ________________ ________ ________

Basic income per share $         .48 $         .86 $         .03________ ________ ________________ ________ ________
Diluted income per share $         .46 $         .81 $         .03________ ________ ________________ ________ ________

Options to purchase 670, 123, and 2,719 shares of common stock were

not included in the computation of diluted earnings per share for the

years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively. The

options were excluded because the options’ were anti-dilutive as the

exercise price was greater than the average market price of the common

shares for the respective periods.
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11 INCENTIVE STOCK
The Board of Directors has the authority to issue incentive stock in one

or more series and to determine the relative rights and preferences of

the incentive stock. On February 10, 1999, the Company adopted a

Shareholder Rights Plan and declared a dividend distribution of one

Right for each outstanding share of Common Stock, payable to holders

of record on March 5, 1999. Under certain conditions, each Right may

be exercised to purchase 1/100 of a share of Series A Junior Participat-

ing Incentive Stock at a purchase price of $95, subject to adjustment.

The Rights are not presently exercisable and will only become exer-

cisable if a person or group acquires or commences a tender offer to

acquire 15% of the Common Stock. If a person or group acquires 15%

of the Common Stock, each Right will be adjusted to entitle its holder

to receive, upon exercise, Common Stock (or, in certain circumstances,

other assets of the Company) having a value equal to two times the

exercise price of the Right or each Right will be adjusted to entitle its

holder to receive, upon exercise, common stock of the acquiring

company having a value equal to two times the exercise price of the

Right, depending on the circumstances. The Rights expire on February

10, 2009 and may be redeemed by the Company for $0.01 per Right.

The Rights do not have voting or dividend rights, and until they become

exercisable, have no dilutive effect on the earnings of the Company.

12 EMPLOYEE STOCK AND SAVINGS PLANS
The Company has three common stock option plans which provide for

the granting of incentive and nonqualified stock options to key em-

ployees, officers and non-employee directors of the Company and its

subsidiaries. The three stock option plans are administered by the

Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors and permit

accelerated vesting of outstanding options upon the occurrence of

certain changes in control of the Company.

The Company also has a stock plan that provides for the sale of com-

mon stock to key employees of the Company and its subsidiaries.

Shares can be awarded under the plan at no purchase price as a stock

bonus and the stock plan also provides for the granting of nonqualified

stock options.

SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” defines a

fair value based method of accounting for an employee stock option and

similar equity instrument. As is permitted under SFAS No. 123, the

Company has elected to continue to account for its stock-based com-

pensation plans under APB Opinion No. 25. The Company has com-

puted, for pro forma disclosure purposes, the value of all options

granted during 2001, 2000 and 1999 using the Black-Scholes option

pricing model as prescribed by SFAS No. 123 using the following

weighted average assumptions for grants:

Year ended December 31, 2001 2000 1999

Risk-free interest rate 4.6% 5.7% 5.5%
Expected dividend yield 0% 0% 0%
Expected life (in years) 4.1 4.0 5.5
Expected volatility 78% 60% 78%

Using the Black-Scholes methodology, the total value of options grant-

ed during 2001, 2000 and 1999 was $39,557, $40,862 and $33,580,

respectively, which would be amortized on a pro forma basis over the

vesting period of the options. The weighted average fair value of

options granted during 2001, 2000 and 1999 was $11.99, $8.99 and

$6.82 per share, respectively. If the Company had accounted for its

stock-based compensation plans in accordance with SFAS No. 123, the

Company’s net income (loss) and net income (loss) per share would

approximate the pro forma disclosures below:

Year ended December 31, 2001 2000 1999

Net income (loss) $  17,920 $  44,598 $  (10,550)
Basic net income (loss) per share $      0.28 $      0.70 $      (0.16)
Diluted net income (loss) per share $      0.28 $      0.69 $      (0.16)

The effects of applying SFAS No. 123 in this pro forma disclosure are not

indicative of future results. SFAS No. 123 does not apply to awards prior

to January 1, 1995 and additional awards are anticipated in future years.

The following table summarizes information about options outstanding

and exercisable at December 31, 2001:

–––––––––– Outstanding ––––––––– –––– Exercisable ––––
Weighted
Average Weighted Weighted

Range of Number of Contractual Average Number of Average
Exercise Prices Shares Life (Years) Price Shares Price

$ 0.04 – 8.06 2,447 6.22 $   7.10 1,527 $   7.02
$ 8.09 – 9.88 1,396 6.03 $   9.04 1,111 $   9.16
$10.00 – 11.63 1,577 4.67 $ 10.60 1,274 $ 10.71
$12.19 – 13.44 1,478 7.38 $ 12.64 521 $ 12.60
$13.50 – 17.68 667 8.24 $ 15.98 205 $ 15.92
$17.81 – 17.81 3,086 8.77 $ 17.81 837 $ 17.81
$18.13 – 18.45 83 9.34 $ 18.42 4 $ 18.21
$18.84 – 18.84 2,200 9.81 $ 18.84 – –
$19.13 – 28.88 877 9.06 $ 23.83 110 $ 23.30
$29.13 – 29.13 60 9.08 $ 29.13 5 $ 29.13______ ______
$ 0.04 – 29.13 13,871 7.59 $ 14.18 5,594 $ 11.09______ ____________ ______
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Options under all four plans generally expire ten years from the date of

grant and become exercisable over a four to five-year period from the

date of grant or from the commencement of employment at prices gen-

erally not less than the fair market value at the date of grant. The excess

of the fair market value of the shares at the date of grant over the option

price, if any, is charged to operations ratably over the vesting period. At

December 31, 2001, 1,986 shares were available for future grant. Stock

options outstanding, the weighted average exercise price and trans-

actions involving the stock option plans are summarized as follows:

Shares Price

Balance at December 31, 1998 9,266 $       8.84
Granted 5,918 8.85
Exercised (1,367) 5.26
Canceled (1,272) 8.65_______ ________

Balance at December 31, 1999 12,545 $       9.25
Granted 4,659 17.36
Exercised (2,726) 8.44
Canceled (2,002) 10.56_______ ________

Balance at December 31, 2000 12,476 $     12.25
Granted 3,160 20.20
Exercised (1,338) 9.33
Canceled (427) 17.60_______ ________

Balance at December 31, 2001 13,871 $     14.18_______ _______________ ________

In May 1989, the shareholders adopted the 1989 Employee Stock Pur-

chase Plan and reserved 1,400 shares for issuance. The shareholders

have subsequently amended the plan to reserve an additional 9,000

shares for issuance. Under the plan prior to 2001, each eligible employ-

ee could purchase up to 800 shares of stock per quarter at prices no less

than 85% of its fair market value determined at certain specified dates.

The shareholders amended the plan effective for 2001 to provide for

overlapping two-year offerings starting every six months with purchases

every six months during those offerings. Each eligible employee may

purchase up to 1,600 shares of stock per semi-annual period at prices no

less than 85% of the lesser of the fair market value of the shares at the

beginning of the two-year offering period or the end of each semi-

annual purchase period. Employees purchased 338 and 539 shares

under the plan in 2001 and 2000, respectively. At December 31, 2001,

3,726 shares remain available for future purchase under the plan. The

plan will expire upon either issuance of all shares reserved for issuance

or at the discretion of the Board of Directors. There are no plans to

terminate the plan at this time.

The Company has an employee savings plan (the Savings Plan) that

qualifies as a deferred salary arrangement under Section 401(k) of the

Internal Revenue Code. Under the Savings Plan, participating U.S.

employees may defer a portion of their pretax earnings, up to the

Internal Revenue Service annual contribution limit. The Company

currently matches 50% of eligible employee’s contributions, up to a

maximum of 6% of the employee’s earnings. Employer matching con-

tributions vest over 5 years, 20% for each year of service completed.

The Company’s matching contributions to the Savings Plan were

$3,619, $3,562 and $3,359, in 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.

13 STOCK REPURCHASES
The Board of Directors has authorized the Company to repurchase

shares in the open market. The Company purchased 1,621, 2,979 and

3,528 shares of common stock for an aggregate purchase price of

$39,658, $52,488 and $33,553 for the years ended December 31, 2001,

2000, and 1999, respectively. The Company considers market condi-

tions, alternative uses of cash and balance sheet ratios when evaluating

share repurchases.

14 COMMON STOCK WARRANT
On October 31, 1999, as part of the purchase price for the acquisition of

substantially all of the assets of VeriBest, the Company issued a warrant

to VeriBest to purchase 500 shares of the Company’s Common Stock

for $15 per share exercisable from October 31, 2001 until October 31,

2002. In November 2001, VeriBest gave up all future rights to exercise

the warrant in exchange for cash consideration of $2,000, at which time

the warrant was cancelled.

15 ACCUMULATED COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
The following table summarizes the components of accumulated other

comprehensive income:

Year ended December 31, 2001 2000 1999

Foreign currency translation adjustment $   10,736 $   14,219 $   19,664
Unrealized gain on derivatives 3,227 – –
Unrealized gain on investments 4,539 1,100 –________ ________ ________

Accumulated other comprehensive 
income $   18,502 $   15,319 $   19,664________ ________ ________________ ________ ________

16 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Leases

The Company leases a majority of its field office facilities under non-

cancelable operating leases. In addition, the Company leases certain

equipment used in its research and development activities. This equip-

ment is generally leased on a month-to-month basis after meeting a six-

month lease minimum.

Future minimum lease payments under all non-cancelable operating

leases are approximately as follows:

Annual periods ending December 31,

2002 $  22,155
2003 19,159
2004 15,993
2005 14,091
2006 11,824
Thereafter 27,299________
Total $ 110,521________________

Rent expense under operating leases was $20,903, $21,879 and $21,366

for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.
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The Company has entered into agreements to sublease portions of its

facility sites. Under terms of these agreements approximately 301

square feet of space was rented to third parties and are expected to

result in rental receipts of $4,667 in 2002.

Legal Proceedings

In October 1997, Quickturn, a competitor, filed an action against the

Company’s German subsidiary in a German District Court alleging

infringement by SimExpress of a European patent 0437491 (EP’491).

The Company was unable to challenge the validity of EP’491 under an

assignor estoppel theory and the German court ruled in April 1999 that

the German subsidiary’s sales of SimExpress violated EP’491 and

awarded unspecified damages. In February 2001, in unrelated litigation,

the Federal Patent Court in Germany ruled that EP’491 is null and void

in Germany. The German District Court, in response to the nullification

of the Quickturn patent, suspended its April 1999 judgment of infringe-

ment against SimExpress. The Company has appealed the court’s

application of assignor estoppel. Quickturn has appealed the invalida-

tion of EP’491. The German Supreme Court will hear both appeals.

In October 1998, Quickturn filed an action against Meta and the

Company in France alleging infringement by SimExpress and Celaro of

EP’491. There have been no rulings by the French court regarding the

merits of this case to date. In 2001, the Company filed suit against

Cadence and Quickturn (Quickturn became a Cadence subsidiary in

1999) in France claiming misappropriation of patent rights. This case

alleges that Quickturn misappropriated Meta trade secrets during

Quickturn’s evaluation of Meta’s technology in connection with a pos-

sible acquisition of Meta in 1994 and 1995 and filed one or more patent

applications claiming rights to inventions Quickturn learned from Meta.

The Company has two consolidated lawsuits pending in U.S. District

Court for the Northern District of California alleging that Quickturn’s

Mercury or MercuryPlus products infringe six Company-owned patents.

The Company is seeking a permanent injunction prohibiting sales and

support of Quickturn’s Mercury and MercuryPlus products in the U.S.,

along with damages and attorney’s fees. The Company also has pending

a misappropriation of trade secret case in U.S. District Court for the

Northern District of California. This case alleges that Quickturn mis-

appropriated Meta trade secrets during Quickturn’s evaluation of Meta’s

technology in connection with a possible acquisition of Meta in 1994

and1995. The Company also alleges that Quickturn filed a U.S. patent

application claiming technology Quickturn learned from Meta in the

same period. The Company asks the court to correct the inventorship of

the resulting U.S. patent. This case has been consolidated with the

patent infringement lawsuit for purposes of discovery and scheduling.

The Company expects trial in the patent infringement lawsuits and the

trade secret case to occur around October 2002.

In addition to the above litigation, from time to time the Company 

is involved in various disputes and litigation matters that arise from 

the ordinary course of business. These include disputes and lawsuits

relating to intellectual property rights, licensing, contracts and 

employee relation matters. While the outcome of these matters is

currently not determinable, management does not expect that the

ultimate costs to resolve these matters will have a material adverse

effect on the Company’s consolidated financial position, results of

operations or cash flows.

17 OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE), NET
Other income (expense) is comprised of the following:

Year ended December 31, 2001 2000 1999

Interest income $   11,954 $ 10,421 $     7,152
Interest expense (2,023) (2,034) (993)
Litigation related costs (7,757) (11,705) (15,312)
Minority interest in earnings (408) (1,383) (778)
Foreign exchange gain (loss) 689 450 (1,651)
Gain on sale of property, plant 
and equipment – 3,118 –

Other, net (1,785) (3,665) (1,429)________ ________ ________
Total $        670 $  (4,798) $ (13,011)________ ________ ________________ ________ ________

18 SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION
The following provides additional information concerning supplemental

disclosures of cash flow activities:

Year ended December 31, 2001 2000 1999

Cash paid for:
Interest expense $     1,420 $    2,103 $        800
Income taxes 9,867 5,955 1,955
Debt issued for purchase of a business – 6,100 –
Issuance of stock warrant and stock 
options for purchase of businesses – – 5,482

19 SEGMENT REPORTING
SFAS No. 131, “Disclosures About Segments of an Enterprise and

Related Information,” requires disclosures of certain information

regarding operating segments, products and services, geographic areas

of operation and major customers. To determine what information to

report under SFAS No. 131, the Company reviewed the Chief Operating

Decision Makers’ (CODM) method of analyzing the operating segments

to determine resource allocations and performance assessments. The

Company’s CODM’s are the Chief Executive Officer and the President.
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The Company operates exclusively in the EDA industry. The Company

markets its products primarily to customers in the communications,

computer, semiconductor, consumer electronics, aerospace, and trans-

portation industries. The Company sells and licenses its products

through its direct sales force in North America, Europe, Japan and

Pacific Rim, and through distributors where third parties can extend

sales reach more effectively or efficiently. The Company’s reportable

segments are based on geographic area.

All intercompany revenues and expenses are eliminated in computing

revenues and operating income. The corporate component of operating

income represents research and development, corporate marketing and

selling, corporate general and administration, special and merger and

acquisition related charges. Corporate capital expenditures and

depreciation and amortization are generated from assets allotted to

research and development, corporate marketing and selling and

corporate general and administration. Reportable segment information

is as follows:

Year ended December 31, 2001 2000 1999

Revenues:
Americas $ 293,828 $ 281,084 $ 249,968
Europe 174,025 176,510 150,833
Japan 97,947 98,707 82,736
Pacific Rim 34,571 33,534 27,597________ ________ ________

Total $ 600,371 $ 589,835 $ 511,134________ ________ ________________ ________ ________
Operating Income:

Americas $ 166,164 $ 151,104 $ 135,404
Europe 96,604 92,735 50,324
Japan 55,788 55,425 41,635
Pacific Rim 22,873 23,448 15,657
Corporate (303,228) (247,418) (227,140)________ ________ ________

Total $   38,201 $   75,294 $   15,880________ ________ ________________ ________ ________
Depreciation and Amortization:

Americas $     1,679 $     4,055 $     4,121
Europe 4,823 5,042 5,235
Japan 681 749 987
Pacific Rim 548 476 612
Corporate 9,993 9,125 10,762________ ________ ________

Total $   17,724 $   19,447 $   21,717________ ________ ________________ ________ ________
Capital Expenditures:

Americas $     1,734 $     3,545 $     2,299
Europe 4,045 6,813 6,165
Japan 2,191 522 1,158
Pacific Rim 629 481 266
Corporate 10,091 7,658 5,677________ ________ ________

Total $   18,690 $   19,019 $   15,565________ ________ ________________ ________ ________
Identifiable Assets:

Americas $ 353,009 $ 313,830 $ 254,601
Europe 99,964 113,145 123,995
Japan 50,480 74,093 47,108
Pacific Rim 20,022 29,846 25,682________ ________ ________

Total $ 523,475 $ 530,914 $ 451,386________ ________ ________________ ________ ________

20 QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION – UNAUDITED
A summary of quarterly financial information follows:

Quarter ended March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31

2001
Total revenues $ 154,502 $ 149,492 $ 131,042 $ 165,335
Gross margin $ 122,671 $ 120,707 $ 102,170 $ 140,150
Operating income (loss) $  20,170 $  16,653 $    8,331 $   (6,953)
Net income (loss) $  16,400 $  13,502 $    6,032 $   (4,830)
Net income (loss) per 
share, basic $      0.25 $      0.21 $      0.09 $      (.07)

Net income (loss) per 
share, diluted $      0.24 $      0.20 $      0.09 $      (.07)

2000
Total revenues $ 128,134 $ 138,052 $ 141,938 $ 181,711
Gross margin $ 101,361 $ 108,655 $ 113,238 $ 147,893
Operating income $ 13,649 $    9,832 $   18,868 $   32,945
Net income $  10,437 $    5,997 $   14,841 $   23,712
Net income per 
share, basic $     0.16 $     0.09 $     0.23 $     0.37

Net income per 
share, diluted $     0.16 $     0.09 $     0.22 $     0.35

21 SUBSEQUENT EVENT
On December 7, 2001, the Company commenced an $11.00 per share

tender offer for all outstanding shares of IKOS Systems, Inc., a

Delaware corporation (IKOS), or approximately $93,500 for approxi-

mately 8,500 shares outstanding. Prior to commencement of this offer,

the Company purchased 842 shares of IKOS common stock for $6,216. 

On March 12, 2002, the Company announced the definitive agreement

to acquire all outstanding shares of IKOS. The transaction is expected

to be finalized by the end of the first quarter of 2002.
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REPORT OF MANAGEMENT
Management of Mentor Graphics Corporation is responsible for

preparing the accompanying consolidated financial statements and for

assuring their integrity and objectivity. The consolidated financial

statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles

generally accepted in the United States and necessarily include some

amounts that are based on informed judgements and best estimates and

assumptions of management. The consolidated financial statements

have been audited by Arthur Andersen LLP, independent auditors,

whose report is included below.

Management of the Company has established and maintains a system 

of internal accounting controls that is designed to provide reasonable

assurance that assets are safeguarded, transactions are properly recorded

and executed in accordance with management’s authorization and the

books and records accurately reflect the disposition of assets. The system

of internal controls includes appropriate division of responsibility.

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors is comprised of four

directors who are not officers or employees of Mentor Graphics

Corporation or its subsidiaries. These directors meet with management

and the independent auditors in connection with their review of matters

relating to the Company’s annual financial statements, the Company’s

system of internal accounting controls, and the services of the inde-

pendent auditors. The Committee meets with the independent auditors,

without management present, to discuss appropriate matters. The

Committee reports its findings to the Board of Directors and also

recommends the selection and engagement of independent auditors.

Walden C. Rhines

Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer

Gregory K. Hinckley

President

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

To the Stockholders and Board of Directors

Mentor Graphics Corporation:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Mentor

Graphics Corporation and subsidiaries (an Oregon corporation) as of

December 31, 2001, and the related consolidated statements of opera-

tions, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for the year then ended.

These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s

management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these

financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally

accepted in the United States. Those standards require that we plan and

perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the

financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes

examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and dis-

closures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the

accounting principles used and significant estimates made by manage-

ment, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly,

in all material respects, the financial position of Mentor Graphics Cor-

poration and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2001, and the results of

their operations and their cash flows for the year then ended, in confor-

mity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States.

Arthur Andersen LLP

Portland, Oregon

January 23, 2002 (except with respect to the matter discussed in 

Note 21, as to which the date is March 12, 2002)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Stockholders and Board of Directors

Mentor Graphics Corporation:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of

Mentor Graphics Corporation and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2000,

and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’

equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the two-year period

ended December 31, 2000. These consolidated financial statements are

the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is

to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based

on our audits.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards gener-

ally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require

that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about

whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An

audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the

amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also 

includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant

estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall

financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a

reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to 

above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of

Mentor Graphics Corporation and subsidiaries as of December 31,

2000, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each 

of the years in the two-year period ended December 31, 2000 in

conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 

United States of America.

KPMG LLP

Portland, Oregon

January 31, 2001

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants 
on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.

Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of Registrant

The information required by this item concerning the Company’s

Directors is included under “Election of Directors” in the Company’s

2002 Proxy Statement and is incorporated herein by reference. The

information concerning the Company’s Executive Officers is included

herein on page 22 under the caption “Executive Officers of the Regis-

trant.” The information required by Item 405 of Regulation S-K is

included under “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Com-

pliance” in the Company’s 2002 Proxy Statement and is incorporated

herein by reference.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by this item is included under “Compensation

of Directors” and “Information Regarding Executive Officer Compen-

sation” in the Company’s 2002 Proxy Statement and is incorporated

herein by reference.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial 
Owners and Management

The information required by this item is included under “Election of

Directors” and “Information Regarding Beneficial Ownership of

Principal Shareholders and Management” in the Company’s 2002 Proxy

Statement and is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

The information required by this item is not applicable to the Company.
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Item 14. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules, and
Reports on Form 8-K

(a) 1 Financial Statements:

The following consolidated financial statements are included in Item 8:

Page

Consolidated Statements of Operations 

for the years ended December 31, 2001, 

2000 and 1999 35

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of 

December 31, 2001 and 2000 36

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 

for the years ended December 31, 2001, 

2000 and 1999 37

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’

Equity for the years ended December 31, 

2001, 2000 and 1999 38

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 39

Report of Independent Public Accountants 50

Independent Auditors’ Report 51

(a) 2 Financial Statement Schedule:

The schedule and report listed below are filed as part of this report on

the pages indicated:

Schedule Page

II Valuation and Qualifying Accounts 54

Report of Independent Public Accountants on Schedule 54

All other financial statement schedules have been omitted since they

are not required, not applicable or the information is included in the

Consolidated Financial Statements or Notes.

(a) 3 Exhibits

3. A. 1987 Restated Articles of Incorporation. Incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 4A to the Company’s Registration Statement

on Form S-3 (Registration No. 33-23024).

B. Articles of Amendment of 1987 Restated Articles of Incorpora-

tion. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.B to the Company’s

Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended

December 31, 1998 (1998 10-K).

C. Bylaws of the Company. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit

3.C to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal

year ended December 31, 2000 (2000 10-K).

4. A. Rights Agreement, dated as of February 10, 1999, between the

Company and American Stock, Transfer & Trust Co.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s

Current Report on Form 8-K filed on February 19, 1999.

10.*A.1982 Stock Option Plan. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit

10.A to the Company’s 2000 10-K.

*B. Nonqualified Stock Option Plan. Incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.C to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for

the fiscal year ended December 31, 1989.

*C. 1986 Stock Plan. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.C to

the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter

ended September 30, 2000.

*D. 1987 Non-Employee Directors’ Stock Option Plan. Incorporated

by reference to Exhibit 10.D to the Company’s Quarterly Report

on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2000.

*E. Form of Indemnity Agreement entered into between the Com-

pany and each of its executive officers and directors. Incorpor-

ated by reference to Exhibit 10.E to the Company’s 1998 10-K.

*F. Form of Severance Agreement entered into between the Com-

pany and each of its executive officers. Incorporated by reference

to Exhibit 10.F to the Company’s 1998 10-K.

G. Lease dated November 20, 1991, for 999 Ridder Park Drive and

1051 Ridder Park Drive, San Jose, California. Incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 10.M to the Company’s Form SE dated

March 25, 1992.

H. Credit Agreement between Mentor Graphics Corporation and

Bank of America National Trust and Savings Association dated

January 10, 2001.

21. List of Subsidiaries of the Company.

23. Consents of Independent Public Accountants.

*Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement

No reports on Form 8-K were filed by the Company during the last

quarter of 2001.
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed

on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, on March 15, 2002.

MENTOR GRAPHICS CORPORATION

By /s/WALDEN C. RHINES_____________________________

Walden C. Rhines

Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed by the following persons on behalf of the registrant

on March 15, 2002, in the capacities indicated.

(1) Principal Executive Officer:

/s/WALDEN C. RHINES Chief Executive Officer__________________________

Walden C. Rhines

(2) Principal Financial Officer:

/s/GREGORY K. HINCKLEY President__________________________

Gregory K. Hinckley

(3) Principal Accounting Officer:

/s/ANTHONY B. ADRIAN Vice President, Corporate Controller__________________________

Anthony B. Adrian

(4) Directors:

/s/WALDEN C. RHINES Chairman of the Board__________________________

Walden C. Rhines

/s/GREGORY K. HINCKLEY Director__________________________

Gregory K. Hinckley

/s/SIR PETER BONFIELD Director__________________________

Sir Peter Bonfield

/s/MARSHA B. CONGDON Director__________________________

Marsha B. Congdon

/s/JAMES R. FIEBIGER Director__________________________

James R. Fiebiger

/s/DAVID A. HODGES Director__________________________

David A. Hodges

/s/KEVIN C. MCDONOUGH Director__________________________

Kevin C. McDonough

/s/FONTAINE K. RICHARDSON Director__________________________

Fontaine K. Richardson
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MENTOR GRAPHICS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Valuation and Qualifying Accounts
In thousands Beginning Ending
Description Balance Additions Deductions Balance

Year ended December 31, 1999

Allowance for doubtful accounts1 $   2,987 $   1,132 $   1,315 $   2,804

Accrued restructuring costs $   4,883 $   8,887 $   6,030 $   7,740

Year ended December 31, 2000

Allowance for doubtful accounts1 $   2,804 $   1,405 $      825 $   3,384

Accrued restructuring costs $   7,740 $   1,027 $   7,720 $   1,047

Year ended December 31, 2001

Allowance for doubtful accounts1 $   3,384 $   1,030 $  1,141 $   3,273

Accrued restructuring costs $   1,047 $ 12,840 $  1,266 $ 12,621
1 Deductions primarily represent accounts written off during the period

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS ON SCHEDULE

To the Stockholders and Board of Directors

Mentor Graphics Corporation:

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally

accepted in the United States, the consolidated financial statements 

of Mentor Graphics Corporation as of December 31, 2001 and for the

year then ended included in this Form 10-K, and have issued our report

thereon dated January 23, 2002. Our audit was made for the purposes

of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken as a

whole. The schedule “Schedule II, Valuation and Qualifying Accounts”

is the responsibility of the Company’s management and is presented for

purposes of complying with the Securities and Exchange Commission’s

rules and is not part of the basic financial statements. The schedule has

been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the

basic financial statements and, in our opinion, fairly states in all

material respects the financial data required to be set forth therein in

relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

Arthur Andersen LLP

Portland, Oregon

January 23, 2002 (except with respect to the matter discussed in 

Note 21, as to which the date is March 12, 2002)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Stockholders and Board of Directors

Mentor Graphics Corporation:

Under date of January 31, 2001, we reported on the consolidated 

balance sheet of Mentor Graphics Corporation and subsidiaries as of

December 31, 2000, and the related consolidated statements of opera-

tions, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the

two-year period ended December 31, 2000, which are included in the

annual report on Form 10-K for the year 2001. In connection with our

audits of the aforementioned consolidated financial statements, we also

have audited the related consolidated financial statement schedule for

the two-year period ended December 31, 2000 as listed in the accom-

panying index. This financial statement schedule is the responsibility

of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an

opinion on this financial statement schedule based on our audit.

In our opinion, such financial statement schedule, when considered in

relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole,

presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein.

KPMG LLP

Portland, Oregon

January 31, 2001

Schedule II
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High school students in the Oregon Rowing Unlimited program power their new
Vespoli racing shell on Portland’s Willamette River during a grueling training
session. The Mentor Graphics Foundation donated the shell to this non-profit
organization that offers rowing to high school students of all socioeconomic
backgrounds. Competitive rowing teaches students teamwork, discipline, and 
hard work and has opened doors for many students to attend college.
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